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DISCLAIMER 

All articles in this Report are, unless otherwise stated, the original work of the contributors. Advertising material will be accepted for publication on the condition that it does not defame 
any person. Fremantle SLSC accepts no responsibility for accuracy of advertising material submitted for publication but will make every effort to verify information. 
Notice to Advertisers - Trade Practices Act 1974 

Advertisers are reminded that the Trade Practices Act 1974 provides severe penalties for false or misleading advertising. It is not possible to check the accuracy of claims or 
quality of service offered by advertisers, and therefore the responsibility must lie with the person or companies submitting material for publication in their advertisements. 
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COVER PHOTOS (from left) 
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program; Cath Morgan, winner of Club Person of the Year. 
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President’s Report 

Jack Dowie 

T 

he 2021-22 season started with a blast at the SLSWA Awards of 
Excellence, where Fremantle won (for the third time in six years) 

Patrol Club of the Year and placed third for Lavan Club of the Year, 
and Jay Morgan received an outstanding acknowledgement as 
Lifesaver of the Year. Nominations for this year’s awards have been 
submitted and we are excited to have been accepted as Finalists in 
the following categories - 

• Lavan Club of the Year (Reg Trigg OBE, Memorial Trophy) 

• Patrol Club of the Year (IT Birtwistle Trophy) 

• Youth Lifesaver of the Year - Jake Silipo 

• Young Volunteer of the Year - James Currey 

• Assessor of the Year – Mike Shaw 

• Support Operations Volunteer of the Year – John Summers 

Good luck to all our Finalists ! 

Our Club, incorporating 1614 members, continues to be supported by 
the four Pillars of Surf Life Saving. - Life saving; Education and 
Training; Surf Sports and Nipper and Youth Development. These 
pillars would collapse if it wasn’t for our volunteer members, our 
administration staff and management teams at all levels. Without the 
involvement of everyone in the Club, we cannot imagine the impact it 
would have on the Club itself and the community. On behalf of the 
Club, I thank you all.  

Life Saving 

Our Club’s Vision is “To develop surf life savers for life”. 

Between October and April this season, beach attendance was just 
under 126,000 (up from 104,000 last year), which supported our 
assumptions that the growth in facilities nearby is contributing to 
increased beach attendance. 

First aid injuries were lower this season with marine stingers being 
much less apparent. Preventative actions rose sharply from last 
season, most of which were related to shark sightings. 

The tragic shark attack at Port Beach in November is an event now 
etched in the minds of many at the Club and, of course, the 
community. Despite the outcome being a fatality, the Club and all 
third parties involved including the family of the late Paul Millachip, 
have embraced the learning from the event to ensure readiness and 
equipment for major events are properly in place. For us, this has 
involved upskilling our Patrol Captains and Vice Captains in the areas 
of managing a critical incident, communication, hands-off leadership, 
working closely with external agencies and member care.  

Life saving is why we are here, so thankyou to everyone on the beach 
and back of beach for doing the hard yards as volunteers. 

To deliver life saving services effectively, the combination of the 
other three Pillars - Education and Training; Surf Sports and Nipper 
and Youth Development - are fundamental to developing great life 
savers. 

From Under 6 to Masters, we continue to learn and train within the 
four Pillars and, most importantly, we need to have fun and enjoy 
being life savers. 

Financial Viability 

Our Club is financially healthy. Expenditure this year was lower, but 
the global increase in prices for operational and maintenance 
expenses did show up as higher than expected. Budgeting for the 
coming season will incorporate these increased costs, despite the 
impact this season not being significant. The Club is reliant on 

sponsorship as well as income from membership fees, so careful 
planning will continue for foreseeable seasons.    

Sponsorship is stable mainly through the receipt of a new major 
sponsor topping up the shortfall of existing smaller sponsors who 
could not be financially supportive this season. In the coming season, 
the Club will require strategic input into its marketing plan to ensure 
support continues. 

Participation 

Member participation, at all ages and for all Club events, continues to 
be a priority focus for the Club. The recognised lack in participation in 
Surf Sports activities last season improved significantly during this 
season, showing the rebuild of the Surf Sports Pillar is coming to 
fruition. 

We commonly see members participating in operational roles out on 
the beach. However, it’s those behind the scenes that we also need 
to recognise more and to whom we need to offer assistance - 
uniform store, canteen, trainers, assessors, committee members and 
managers to name a few. It is important these people have time for 
fun in the sun with family and friends this coming season, so please 
put up your hand to offer your support, even if it is just occasionally.  

Member Development 

The Woodside Nippers Program continued to boost enthusiasm 
within our Nipper group. Nipper numbers remained consistently high, 
and capping of age groups was returned for management, 
operational and safety reasons. To support our Age Group Managers 
through their tenure, we introduced a compulsory annual Age Group 
Manager training program. This program was designed to support 
the education and development of our Age Group Managers and 
ensure their coaching techniques are consistent with the SLSWA 
curriculum across all age groups, with the most modern practices in 
human movement and physiology.  

For the second year, our Club conducted a joint training day with St 
John’s trainee paramedics. Our Education team developed a day-

long program of ten testing first aid scenarios for over thirty 
Paramedic trainees, covering incidents that paramedics are likely to 
encounter at our beaches. Patients and First Responders were 
provided by our Patrol leadership team, which also gave our leaders 
valuable training in how to manage an incident on the beach and to 
coordinate, hand over and work cooperatively with the paramedics. 
St John are extremely happy with the program and are enthusiastic 
to continue the relationship with us.  

Youth are continually encouraged and are willing to take senior 
patrol positions supported by a mentor scheme, such as Patrol 
Captain (supported by a senior Vice Captain). Youth enthusiastically 
put their hands up for Age Group Manager, Coaching and back of 
beach roles to support the Club. The Starfish Nippers program, being 
in its second year, adds another dimension to our Youth members’ 
development, who work one-on-one with young people with special 
needs. 

Sustainability 

The Club has seen a 3.9% increase in membership since last season. 
Despite Nipper memberships being capped, the Club continues to 
grow in the broader membership areas, especially social. Based on 
this increase, we forecast more growth in the coming years through 
continually building relationships within the community and the 
increased media coverage through Surf Life Saving WA. 
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Our reputation as a Surf Life Saving Club remains strong. Outcomes 
year to year continue to be positive. However, the Club will always 
be prepared to react to a downturn should this be necessary. 

Engagement 

The Club continued its Multicultural Beach Safety and Surf 
Awareness program for an eighth year. This year, despite COVID 
difficulties and the after-effects of the Port Beach shark attack, our 
Club again hosted Aranmore Catholic College and Lynwood Senior 
High School’s migrant units. A record total of 120 students received 
in-class presentations on beach safety and surf awareness before 
coming down to the beach for practical learning and fun. 

Key stakeholders in the Port and Leighton Planning Group, initiated 
in 2021 and chaired by the Club, continue to improve collaboration 
to identify immediate and long-term issues at a management level. 
The group, inclusive of local government, the City of Fremantle and 
the Fremantle Port Authority, now meets at least quarterly, or when 
necessary, to manage issues before they escalate. Through this 
group, beach erosion mitigation has started at Port Beach, including 
rock wall construction/maintenance and the start of sand 
replenishment through sand dredging. 

The Christmas Market was a massive hit this year, with a record 
number of stalls run by both members and the public. This will very 
likely become an exciting annual event on the Club calendar in 
future years. 

The 80th anniversary of HMAS Sydney II Memorial drew a larger 
than normal attendance than seen in previous years. This emotional 
event is now well recognised within the community and with past 
servicemen. 

For the second year, our Club ran its ‘Pink Patrol’ on March 7th, run 
entirely by our female members. Wearing pink on the patrol was a 
strong visual reminder to the beach-going public of the service of 
women in surf life saving, as well as highlighting societal issues. 
Attending members also collected women’s toiletries for donation 
to women in need. 

Best Club Member 

This season, Cath Morgan was recognised as Best Club Member, for 
her outstanding contribution to Surf Sports Management and 
achievements at the Club. 

Cath again worked hard all season in the frontline as well as behind 
the scenes, including 52 patrol hours, assisting in the education 
space with BM proficiencies and SRC training, helping with the 
Starfish Nippers program and organising the Club’s first 
involvement in the national 24hr rowing event for mental health. 

The Club prospers because of people like Cath who willingly give 
their time to help in whatever way they can. 

Club Values 

Finally, we should continually remind each other of the importance 
of understanding our Club Values - 

SERVICE  We are committed to our community service role and 
maintaining our proud lifesaving record. 
FUN  We encourage a culture of enjoyment and fulfillment. 
DEVELOPMENT  We strive to improve ourselves, our club and the 
surf movement through growth, lifesaving, education, and surf 
sports. 
TEAMWORK  We work together as one club. 
INTEGRITY  We are committed to the highest standards of ethics, 
behaviour, and mutual respect. 
WELLBEING  We are ambassadors for safe and healthy living. 

Reconciliation 

K 

aya everyone,   

Fremantle Surf Life Saving Club acknowledges the Whadjuk 
people of the Nyoongar nation, on whose traditional lands and 
waterways we serve our community, and we have deep respect for 
their Elders past, present and emerging. We recognise and seek to 
learn from the important knowledge held by First Nations Peoples 
over tens of thousands of years as the Traditional Custodians of 
Walyalup.  

This season, we continued to work on our Reconciliation Action Plan 
(RAP), which was officially endorsed by Reconciliation Australia in 
2021. The RAP Working Group put together a Terms of Reference 
document, which has been endorsed by the Club, outlining the role 
of the Working Group as well as how we will move forward in 
addressing the RAP.   

The digitalised sand mural was used this season on the new boat 
“Happy As - Larry Tilbury”. This imagery symbolises our Club’s 
intent to promote and acknowledge First Nations People. We 

further used this imagery on new youth tops. To celebrate the 
importance of the Sand Mural in the Club’s Reconciliation journey, 
we had Roni and Simon Forrest join us and explain the meaning 
behind the sand mural art to the Youth as well as present the shirts 
individually to each youth member.    

Members of the Youth group received their tops (showing the 
sand mural design) from Roni and Simon Forrest (centre) 

Best Club Member, Cath Morgan (centre) presented by Liam Burke 

and Club Vice Patron Alex Bajada 
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New Life Member - Brian Troy 

B 

rian joined the Leighton Club in 1973 as a Juvenile member 
(Nipper) and is one of the few to have spent a lifetime with this 

club. Brian has demonstrated leadership,  has been involved in 
competition at the highest level   and assisted club members in 
their development for nearly 50 years. 

His leadership qualities became apparent early, being involved as 
Patrol Captain, Club Handicapper, Patrol Supervisor, Club Captain, 
Club Secretary, Club President and has continued to now as an Age 
Group Manager and Chairs of the Constitution Committee and of the 
History Committee. 

In these roles, Brian has assisted in renegotiating the terms of the 
Club Patrol Contract with State Centre, developed a Lifesavers’ 
Policy framework to delegate some of the responsibility of Club 
Captaincy, worked with the Club Directors to consolidate our Club 
Bar License and ensured that the Club Constitution was amended to 
fit the new structure of the Board. 

Brian has been no slouch in the competition arena, raising attention 
on both the WA and eastern coasts as Junior and Senior Club 
Champion Lifesaver. He was recently installed in the WA Hall of 

Fame as a member of the Fremantle Beach Relay Team from 1981 
to 1992, a member of the State Team in 1981-82 and 1982-83 and 
possibly the crowning glory - the Pillow Fight Champion at the 
International Surf Carnival in 1983 – not many can claim that Title! 

Brian has brought all this experience back into the Club as a coach 
and mentor to the younger members - as coach to the successful 
NSW Trophy Team, R and R Coach and Beach Sprint Coach. 

It should be highlighted that Brian trained the first two female 
members at Fremantle to achieve the Bronze Medallion in 1980 
(Carolyn Bailey and Debbie Bennett). 

Brian’s influence has extended to State Centre as a member of its 
Organisation Review Committee and Constitution Committee. 

His most recent involvement in the Club, as Chair of the History 
Committee, is aimed at compiling a comprehensive history of the 
club in order to inspire our members in the future. 

With more than 40 years of outstanding service to our Club and Surf 
Lifesaving WA, Brian is a shining example of the Club’s Life 
Membership standards. 

Life Membership 

Graham Walton 

Brian Troy (right) is presented with his Life Member’s pin by Graham Walton (left) and Liam Burke (Vice President) 

Brian Troy - Pillow Fight World Champion, Hall of Fame member for the 1981-92 Beach Relay Team 
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2022 SLSWA Awards of Excellence Nominees 

A 

t Fremantle, we have a proud history of providing exceptional 

nominees for the SLSWA Awards of Excellence, winning Patrol 

Club of the Year three times in the last six years, plus individual 

winners in the categories of Lifesaver, Trainer, Assessor and 

Volunteer of the Year in just the last three years alone. 

Congratulations to all of our nominees for the 2022 SLSWA Awards 

of Excellence ! 

Lavan Club of the Year (finalist) 

Our Club has led the charge on several 

new initiatives this season. After the 

horrific shark attack in November, we 

upskilled our patrol leadership to give 

them better skills in critical incident 

management. We also initiated an 

Education Managers forum with 

adjacent clubs, to discuss issues and 

improved training and assessment at our clubs. We introduced 

compulsory annual AGM training, to ensure they are armed with the 

latest coaching techniques. Our club also improved the advertising 

reach of all clubs, creating the ‘Ocean Swims by SLSC’ Facebook 

group, to increase revenue from nine club’s fundraising swims. We 

created online tools to improve member’s competency in 

responding to a first aid incident, trainer and assessor currency and 

patrol quizzes to keep our members’ skills sharp. We engaged with 

our community through the multicultural beach safety school 

program, the Pink Patrol and led the Port and Leighton Planning 

group with local Government, City of Fremantle and Fremantle 

Ports. 

Patrol Club of the Year (finalist) 

Our Club met all requirements of the Lifesaving Agreement with the 

City of Fremantle. We continued to be a top ‘training’ club with 250 

new awards delivered and continue to successfully deploy jet skis, 

IRB’s and drones to supplement our foot patrols. For the second 

year, we ran the first two patrols as “leadership patrols” for our 

patrol leadership teams. For the first time, our Lifesaving team 

addressed issues of mental wellbeing by bringing the ‘Outside the 

Locker Room’ team for some workshops. And, even though we 

started working on additional shark detection buoys before the 

shark incident in November, we pushed for and received an 

additional detector and warning system at Port Beach. 

Woodside Nippers Club of the Year 

Our nipper numbers continue to remain strong at around 600 kids. 

This year, there has been a big focus on Surf Sports participation 

and we have seen a 34 percent increase in our Nippers competing 

at States. We have also put our AGM’s through a compulsory AGM 

session to ensure everyone is using the latest techniques. 

Young Volunteer of the Year (James Currey, finalist) 

This year was James’ second as Captain 

of his ‘Flo’ Patrol. He has worked 

tirelessly to encourage interaction 

between younger and more mature 

members of his patrol. He completed 30 

patrol hours and acted as the Patrol 

Captain for the Christmas patrol for the 

second year. James is also a valuable 

member of the Lifesaving Committee, acting as Patrol Officer in 

charge of the Team Lists and Rosters. He has begun his Trainer 

journey, supporting the training of our new SRC’s. In Surf Sports, 

James is the Surf Sports Committee Secretary, and competed in 

IRB’s and surf boats, winning bronze medals in both at States. He 

has also completed his S2 sweep accreditation. But perhaps his 

greatest love is for his Under 10 Nipper group, as their Age Group 

Manager. James is a fantastic role model for younger members in 

our Club. 

Youth Lifesaver of the Year (Jake Silipo, finalist) 

Jake’s love of powercraft saw him this 

year become an IRB trainer and deliver 

two IRB Crew courses and an IRB Driver 

course. Even though aged  only 20, 

Jake’s natural leadership skills 

continued to develop as Patrol Captain 

of ‘Bubbles’ patrol. In addition, Jake 

took on the Vehicle and Radio Officer 

role on the Life Saving and Education 

Committee. Jake is an enthusiastic 

member of our RWC patrols, in particular the Abalone Patrols this 

season, as well as providing water safety for the Fremantle Ocean 

Classic. He is also an SLSWA Lifeguard and competes in IRB racing 

and surf boats. 

Assessor of the Year (Mike Shaw, finalist) 

Mike has been our Club’s most active 

trainer and assessor, having 

participated in all SRC. BM and ART 

skills maintenance sessions this season, 

plus has conducted BM assessments at 

Swanbourne and North Cottesloe, 

generally as Assessor-in-charge. 

Having witnessed the difficulties in 

organising assessors from other clubs 

to come to Fremantle for our BM 

assessments, Mike initiated an continuing forum of the Education 

Managers from the adjacent clubs, to discuss common issues, and 

included setting up a shared calendar where all training and 

assessment activities are listed and assessors can ’sign up’ for 

assessments. Mike has also developed an online solution to the 

issues of maintaining trainer and assessor currency of qualifications, 

where all our club trainers and assessors can record their activities 

(at the time of the event), resulting in a complete database of 

activities for submission to State Centre. 

Support Operations Volunteer of the Year (John Summers, finalist) 

This award is nominated by State 

Centre, not by our Club, so this is an 

outstanding recognition of John’s long 

contribution to lifesaving. John is an 

active member of the Emergency 

Response Team and was the first port 

of call to attend numerous searches for 

missing people, in conjunction with WA 

Police. John has also been an active 

RWC patroller for each of the WA 

Abalone patrols around Penguin Island. 
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Director of Finance Report 

Henny Smith 

I t is my pleasure to present the Audited Financial Report for the 
Club for the 12 month period ending 31 March 2022. 

RESULT FOR THE YEAR 

The Club has recorded a net profit of $150,304 for the year after 
amortisation, depreciation and accounting adjustments, but before 
capital expenditure. 

The result for the year has exceeded our expectations, and reflects 
the high level of member activity at, and engagement with, the Club. 
Income from membership fees increased by 3.1% on the previous 
year, income from sales increased by 11.7%, income from club rental 
and hire almost doubled, and income from social and fundraising 
went up 22.5%. The Club experienced another strong year in terms 
of donations, sponsorship and grants. 

INCOME 

Our major sources of income were - 

Membership fees   $ 232,988 

Sales (bar, canteen & uniform shop) $ 89,644 

Sponsorship    $ 94,048 

Donations    $ 76,995 

Grants     $ 33,000 

Club rental & hire income  $ 46,478 

Social & fundraising   $ 26,737 

EXPENDITURE 

Our major areas of expenditure were: 

Administration    $ 146,922 

Building expenses   $ 150,666 

COGS (bar, canteen & uniform shop) $ 79,988 

Competition expenses   $ 39,918 

Vehicle & equipment expenses  $ 33,965 

Members insurance   $ 25,946 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 31 March 2022, the Club’s net assets were valued at $2,448,767. 
The Club’s cash assets amounted to $570,169 as at 31 March 2021. 

LOOKING FORWARD 

Since April 2018, the Club has increased its cash reserves from 
$235,000 to $570,000. A significant portion of our cash reserves has 
been allocated towards future capital expenditure on the building. 

At this point in time, we believe the Club is in a strong financial 
position and has the resources to survive any further disruptions like 
those experienced in relation to the COVID pandemic. 

At the time of writing this report, the Board is in the process of 
finalising the 2022-23 Budget. It is not anticipated that there will be a 
cash surplus from this budget, as there will be a higher level of 
capital expenditure in the coming year. However, we will be 
ensuring that cash reserves remain strong. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Despite formally handing over the Finance Director reins to me, 
Tony Silipo has continued to contribute much time and energy in 
the finance space, including preparing the year-end compliance 
accounts, and many hours of in-person and over-the-phone advice. 
Thank you ,Tony. Many thanks also to Dee Purcell, Jo Jameson and 
Jack Dowie for helping me get across my brief in my first year as 
Finance Director, and for your enormous contributions to the Club 
more generally. Thanks also to all of our members who donate their 
time and money to the Club - it couldn't operate without you. 

 

 

New equipment acquired this season includes a second advanced resus manikin 

 and major bleed trainers for the ART course, a new ATV and new surf boat “Happy As - Larry Tilbury” 
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Administration Officer’s Report 
Jo Jameson 

 Male Female 20-21 19-20 18-19 17-18 21-22 

Active (18+) 96 60 138 167 163 148 156 

Active (15-18) 45 64 81 96 109 99 109 

Active Reserve 13 8 24 22 24 26 21 

Long Service 27 8 31 31 25 29 35 

Cadet (13-15) 49 82 113 123 105 106 131 

Total 230 222 387 439 426 408 452 

Lifesaving Membership 

Other Membership Categories 

Junior Membership 

 Male Female 21-22 20-21 19-20 18-19 17-18 

Under 6 & 7 83 78 161 157 149 161 144 

Under 8 48 29 77 99 82 76 81 

Under 9 40 44 84 89 71 80 72 

Under 10 44 41 85 64 79 76 57 

Under 11 26 29 55 76 75 60 56 

Under 12 32 37 69 76 53 63 54 

Under 13 30 45 75 49 65 52 41 

Total 299 298 596 610 574 568 505 

 Male Female 21-22 20-21 19-20 18-19 17-18 

Probationary 14 8 22 24 23 43 40 

Award 38 28 66 75 92 78 82 

Associate 252 205 457 431 372 404 345 

Total 304 241 543 530 535 580 467 

D 

espite COVID-19 disruptions and the tragic incident at Port 
Beach, the overwhelming majority of our membership 

continued to make their way to our beautiful beach on Sunday 
mornings. With our membership continuing to grow well into the 
New Year, we hope our new members enjoyed their first season at 
Fremantle. 

We take this opportunity to thank members for their support and 
willingness to abide by the guidelines in place at the time when 
utilising the Club facilities. 

Sunday morning is the busiest day of the week and where would 
we be without our effervescent Canteen Manager, Mick Curren With 
boundless energy and humour, Mick not only runs the canteen like 
a well-oiled machine, but also volunteers many hours supporting 
Club events. From the bottom of out hearts, thank you Mick. 

Kirsty Sharpe over the years has volunteered across many areas of 
the club and more recently took on the roll of Uniform Shop 
Manager.  Last season, Kirsty took on the difficult task to find a new 

design for our club bathers in time for States and Aussies.  Kirsty 
managed this in a time when eastern states manufacturing was 
closed due to COVID and transport was backlogged due to floods. 
The new bathers look amazing and arrived in time!  Due to other 
commitments, Kirsty will not be returning to the Uniform Shop next 
season.  Thank you, Kirsty for all the hard work you have done - we 
will miss you and that fantastic Scottish accent on Sunday 
mornings. 

Throughout the year, the Club’s training rooms are hired most 
weeks for corporate training/meetings, strata meetings, SLSWA 
training, choir sessions, high school leadership sessions, and social 
events. Many thanks to all our members for the respect they show 
toward our visitors by allowing them privacy.  A big thank you to our 
Bar Staff members who are often called to help on weekends. 

In the off-season, Admin remains busy, winding up one season and 
preparing for the next.  We can’t wait to see everyone back on the 
beach for 2022-23 season. 
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A 

fter our record 400 competitors last year, around 300 registered 
for this year’s 41st annual Fremantle Ocean Classic swim over 

1600m and 3200m distances. It was a gorgeous day with flat sea 
conditions, conducive to good times. 

Sponsors of this year’s event included Funky Monkey Bars, FINZ, 
Mint Real Estate, Aussie Natural Spring Water, Ross Shaw plus first 
timer Powerhouse Surf (thanks for joining us !), with support from 
Coast Port Beach, Churchill Imaging, The Orange Box and Emily 
Taylor restaurant in Fremantle. 

Overall winners of the headline events were - 

• 1600m Charlie Hewitt (19:48) and Lyle Kildea (24:53) 

• 3200m Giacomo Lucivero (42:17) and Daisy Hewitt (42:34) 

Plus there was a fantastic number of Club members who 
participated (33 in total !). Some notable results - 

In the 1600m - 

• Tom Dreverman (4th overall and 1st U/16) 

• Sam Connolly (7th overall and 2nd U/16) 

• Evie Hussey (4th overall and 1st U/16) 

• Tracey Shaw (2nd overall and 1st 50-59) 

• Fi Carroll (3rd overall and 1st 40-49) 

In the 3200m - 

• Eben Prinsloo (2nd overall and 1st U/16) 

• Amelie Prinsloo (3rd overall and 1st 16-19) 

• Brad Ravenscroft (9th overall and 3rd 50-59) 

• Poppy Rawlings (5th overall and 1st U1/6) 

• Niamh Dickson (6th overall and 2nd U/16) 

Congratulations to everyone who competed this year - we hope to 
see you back again next year ! 

80th Anniversary HMAS Sydney II Memorial 

O 

ur HMAS Sydney II Memorial event keeps getting bigger and 
better every year ! Each November, our Club holds a special 

ceremony to remember the officers and crew of the HMAS Sydney 
II, which was lost on November 19th 1941 with all 645 crew 
members, in an epic sea battle with the German raider ‘Kormoran’. 
Many of the crew members of HMAS Sydney II spent time at the 
Club when not on active duty.  

Attendees at this year’s event included Lieutenant Commander 
Patrick Crosbie, Warrant Officer Deb Butterworth of the Royal 
Australian Navy at HMAS Stirling, John McCourt Chief Executive 
Officer of the Returned & Services League of Australia WA, Crew 
members from the HMAS Sydney III and IV, Club Patrons Hannah 
Fitzhardinge, Mayor of Fremantle and Alex Bajada, David Honey, 
Member for Cottesloe, Cr Frank Mofflin, Deputy Mayor of Fremantle, 
Cr Doug Thompson, City of Fremantle North Ward, and guests from 
Fremantle Ports.  

One of own young club members was also recognised - Jamie 
Bowers - who is currently on-board the newly built HMAS Sydney 
V. 

The proceedings were overseen by Club President, Jack Dowie. A 
Welcome to Country was offered by Club member, Kate Silipo, and 
was followed by WO Deb Butterworth who talked about the 
courage and camaraderie of the crew of the HMAS Sydney II. This 
was followed by words from Club member, Clara Moody, who 
talked about the Club’s connection to the crew of HMAS Sydney II. 

An honour guard, comprising juniors and senior members of our 
patrols, then carried two memorial wreath, the HMAS Sydney II reel 
and the banner of ex-members of HMAS Sydney vessels down to 
the water edge, accompanied by the sounds of bagpipes. A surf 
boat crew then rowed the wreath out to deeper water, placed the 
wreath on the water and raised oars in salute. 

The 41st ‘Fremantle Ocean Classic’ 

Overall winners - (from left) Giacomo Lucivero and Daisy Hewitt (3200m), 
Charlie Hewitt and Lyle Kildea (1600m) 

Fremantle young guns - (from left) Eben Prinsloo, Tom Dreverman, Amelie 
Prinsloo, Poppy Rawlings (front) and Niamh Dickson 

WO Deb Butterworth, RAN HMAS Stirling, Jack Dowie (front), Kate Silipo, Clara Moody (rear), Honour Guard carrying the Sydney Reel, oars raised in salute 
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S 

hark attack! Two words any 
patrolling clubbie never wants to 

hear. Unfortunately, on November 6th 
2021 - eerily, twenty-one years to the 
day since Ken Crew was attacked in 
shallow water off Cottesloe Beach - our 
Community felt that pain at Port Beach. 
At around 10am, a local swimmer, 57 
year old Paul Millachip, father to two and 
good friend to many, went for his usual 
morning swim when he was attacked. 
However, the attack was witnessed by 
four young boys in a couple of small 
boats, and their reaction to attempt to 
both help Paul and to warn everyone in 
the water and on the beach can only be 
described as ‘heroic’. 

Patrol Captain on the beach that morning 
was Annabelle Standing, leading ‘Gill’ 
patrol. When the call came in, Annie, her 
patrol and supported by some senior 
Club members who happened to be on 
Leighton Beach that morning, reacted 
swiftly, moving personnel, vehicles and 
major bleeds kits down to Port Beach, 
believing that a major trauma was 
happening. Unfortunately, it became quickly apparent that Paul was 
missing and the response turned to trying to find him. 

Our patrol members worked tirelessly to support the response team 
comprising WA Police, St John Paramedics, City of Fremantle 
Rangers, Department of Fisheries and Fremantle Volunteer Sea 
Rescue. One of our jet skis soon joined in to the water search. WA 
Police made use of our Port Beach Annex to conduct interviews and 

debrief the four young witnesses, and 
we supplied vehicles to move 
personnel up and down the beach 
during the search. 

After the search was halted on that first 
day, a quick debrief was held with our 
patrol members to ensure that their 
mental health was being looked after, 
and to discuss the possible side effects 
of such a traumatic incident. Club Peer 
Support Officers kept in touch with the 
patrol over the next few days, checking 
in to make sure they were coping. 

After the search was wound down, the 
Lifesaving leadership team took some 
time to consider and evaluate our 
response to an incident that went far 
above our normal training. While we 
could not have asked for any better 
performance from our members, it was 
clear that we could provide our Patrol 
Captains and Vice Captains some 
extended training in managing critical 
incidents - in particular, around 
communication, teamwork and hands-

off leadership,  

So, a half-day program was developed in-house (recognising that 
the new Patrol Captains course was at least 1-2 years away) covering 
the theoretical aspects above, but then put around ten of our PC/
VC’s through three realistic scenarios, which included use of radio 
communications (including ‘Surfcom’) and patients. We intend to 
continue this training next season, to ensure our patrol leadership 
has the best training possible for such incidents in the future. 

Tragic shark death - a first on our beach 

Fremantle SLSC members supported the response team, comprising WA Police, St John Paramedics, WA Fisheries, 
Volunteer Sea Rescue, City of Fremantle Rangers, both on the beach and in the water (photos - The West Australian) 

Farewell, Paul Millachip (photo - WA Police) 
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Club Captain’s Report 
Jay Morgan 

N 

ot unlike last year, the 2021-22 season has continued 
to be a challenge for many. With COVID restrictions 

impacting our lives, the Club remains an important place 
for us to keep active, be around friends and maintain  our 
important routines. Thank goodness for our local 
communities and clubs for keeping up our mental and 
physical well-being. 

Life Saving and Education 

Our Life Saving and Education team excelled themselves 
again this season. As always, our trainers and assessors 
worked hard to run everyone through their proficiencies 
and guide our members to achieving many new awards. 
Our Lifesaving team were challenged like never before this 
season with a fatal shark attack at our beach. I can’t speak 
highly enough of the skill, dedication and efforts of our 
members who were involved on the day and in the days 
and weeks following. I’m super proud of how everyone 
pulled together. A huge thanks to our patrolling members 
who turn up every weekend to keep our beach safe and to 
our trainers and assessors, love your work!  

Surf Sports 

We saw some real improvement across most surf sports disciplines 
this season. We started by assembling a fantastic committee who 
are experts in their field and full of enthusiasm. Under their 
leadership, most areas experienced an increase in competitor 
numbers and we had some outstanding results. It was a priority to 
offer high quality training options and to develop new coaches from 
within the club. One of the highlights for me was the reinvigoration of 
the Sunday club swim and long run led by Dorian Moro and Tracey 
Shaw. It was fantastic to see the fun atmosphere and friendly rivalry 
on the beach on a Sunday morning. Thanks to all of the volunteers 
who help things run smoothly. This area is looking very promising for 
future seasons to come.  

Development 

Isn’t it fantastic that Nipper and Youth numbers remain so high at our 
club? It’s a no brainer that this is directly the result of the wonderful 
AGM’s we have and the passion and commitment they give to our 
youngest members. As we all know our nippers and youth are the 
future of our club and I can’t emphasise how important it is that we 
continue to run a quality education program to develop our next 
batch of surf lifesavers. Special thanks to outgoing Nipper Managers, 

Kirsty and Joel Moore for their contribution to development at our 
club - big shoes to fill! 

Jason Shortte Memorial Award 

The winner of this year’s Jason Shortte Memorial Award for the best 
Under 19 member was Ethan Shaw. This season, Ethan has 
competed for Fremantle in surf boats and IRB racing. He was captain 
of ‘Nemo’ patrol and has completed 46.5 hours. Last winter, Ethan 
completed his RWC Operator award and has continued to develop 
his skills by participating in an advanced rescue skills course in 
Denmark and volunteering for abalone patrols. He has also been 
assisting with servicing our IRB motors, is a member of the social 
committee and is always willing to help out behind the bar. Ethan 
has made an outstanding contribution to the Club this season and is 
a worthy recipient of this award.  

 

It has been a great honour to hold the position of Club Captain for 
the past two seasons and I would like to thank my fellow Board 
members and all of our volunteers for your amazing support. Again, 
thanks and see you on the beach.  

Ethan Shaw (centre), winner of the Jason Shortte Memorial Under 19 award presented by 
Jay Morgan, Club Captain and Lisa O’Malley MLA 

Due to the increased focus on Surf Sports, we saw a 34% increase in the number of Junior competitors this year at the State Championships 
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Life Saving Report 

Jess Simpson 

T 

he 2021-22 season has seen a tremendous 
effort from all members young and old. A 

huge thank you to everyone for your dedication 
this season.  As a team, we have continued to 
develop the skills and attributes so critical to that 
of effective life savers.  

This season saw 350 members clocking up 5,101 
patrolling hours plus 2258 water safety hours. Our 
beach attendance for the patrol season grew again 
to over 126,000 with one rescue recorded, 32 first 
aid actions and 2,633 preventative actions. The 
season was unlike others with COVID disruptions 
and the unfortunate Port Beach shark incident in 
November. Despite the incident outcome, it was 
incredibly reassuring to see so many members 
jumping in to assist on the day, as well as the 
weeks and months following. The Club has drawn 
strength and learnings from this tragic event and is 
better placed moving forward. Let’s continue to 
look out for and support everyone within our big 
surf family. 

In true Fremantle form, we have continued to 
provide great opportunities for member 
development, which is thanks to the Club’s 
wonderful trainers and assessors off the beach, as 
well as on the beach with our leadership teams 
within each patrol group. Our Patrol Captains, Vice 
Captains, IRB Drivers and IRB Crew’s efforts and 
dedication to improve our patrol teams abilities is greatly 
appreciated by all members and the public. Our fundamental 
purpose is to patrol the beach and many members, especially 
Patrol Captains, have stepped up when it was needed most, so we 
are very grateful for your commitment. 

Our members have not only shown commitment to patrolling 
Leighton, Port and Mosman Beaches, we have also had great 
representation off the beach, where our members have rendered 
their assistance to those in need outside of patrols. We have hosted 
events like the FOC and Port to Pub (which was unfortunately 
cancelled), have helped at abalone patrols, have provided water 
safety at State competitions, and provided water safety and first aid 
to a number of events in and around Fremantle. Our young life 

savers continue to take on opportunities like the State TOAD and 
RiseUp Youth Development Camps, with other members jumping in 
to take on new responsibilities on patrols. The depth of talent we 
have in our youth is very exciting and we can’t wait to see them take 
on leadership positions within our patrols and beyond.  

Fremantle’s Best Patrol Member for the season, as announced at 
the Annual Dinner, was Jake Silipo. Jake has been a constant 
presence on the beach for many years with this season being no 
different with over 50 patrol hours completed. Jake consistently 
volunteers around the club by organising and facilitating IRB Driver 
and IRB Crew courses as well as assisting with RWC courses. Jake is 
a Patrol Captain as well as the Club Vehicle and Radio officer and 
has continued his passion of training our next generation of life 

savers by assisting in training our 70 new Youth 
Members in their Surf Rescue Certificate.  

I don’t do this job alone. A huge thank you to the Life 
Saving and Education Committee for remaining 
flexible throughout this season and providing further 
opportunities for our members - in particular Liam 
Burke (Director of Life Saving and Education), Mike 
Shaw (Education Manager), Liz Pitts & James Currey 
(Patrol Officers), Kieren Smith (Drone Officer), Jake 
Silipo (Radio and Vehicle Officer), John Summers (IRB 
& RWC Officer) and Ella Douglas (First Aid Officer). 
You have all helped ensure the members of the club 
are supported in all areas from gear and equipment 
through to training and member development. 
Without you, we would not have the equipment on 
the beach, courses to develop our skills and activities 
to meet new people.  

Don’t forget that what we do matters. We develop our 
members to save lives and when we stand on the 
beach wearing our red and yellow uniform we are 
seen as being of the highest calibre. Just remember 
the profound effect that the actions of our volunteers 
make on the public, and how highly you are regarded 
standing in your red and yellow and no matter what, 
we always have the back of our fellow clubbies 
standing beside us.  

Thank you to our remarkable surf life savers who 
gave their time this patrol season and for the vital 
rescues you performed. Stay safe and see you in the 
new season.   

Jake Silipo (right) is presented with the Best Patrol 
member trophy by Jess Simpson (Life Saving Manager) 

IRB’s, drones and jet skis provided support to Gill’s Boxing Day patrol, led by Annabelle Standing 
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Education Report 
 Mike Shaw 

E 

ven though our ability to deliver excellent training was 
hampered by the impacts of COVID,  we still managed to deliver 

over 260 new awards (up substantially on last year’s 209) - this on 
top of several hundred Bronze Medallion (BM), Surf Rescue 
Certificate (SRC) and Advanced Resuscitation Techniques (ART) skills 
maintenance checks. We couldn’t do this without the outstanding 
support of our trainers and assessors - Peter Hastie, John Price, Mark 
Regel, Larry Tilbury, Pip Hawson, John Summers, Rachelle Doyle, 
Jess Simpson, Liam Burke, Madeleine Stockden, Jake Silipo, Dylan 
Ewart, James Birkmanis, Liz Pitts, Cath Morgan, Jay Morgan, Ian 
Clarke, Kelly Aitken-Fox and Lawson Mills. As always, your 
enthusiasm has been greatly valued ! 

As for many years, we ran three BM courses, including two of the 
now very popular week-long Intensive courses, delivering 50 new 
patrolling BM members onto our beaches. As ART is now a priority 
award for our patrols,, in order to be able to deliver oxygen, and 
Provide First Aid is now a prerequisite award for this, we ran several 
First Aid and ART courses. The purchase of an additional advanced 
airway manikin, and a second wound packing trainer, has 
significantly improved our delivery of both ART award and skills 
maintenance sessions. 

This season saw a significant increase in the number of SRC awards 
(adult and youth) - the major increase occurred when Santa Maria 
school asked to bring down twenty of their girls to undertake this 
training. While we are pleased and excited about this new 
relationship, it put an almost intolerable strain on our trainers’ 
abilities to deliver high quality training to this many people in a single 
group. If we are to sustain this level of activity, we will need to 
explore alternatives such as running an intensive SRC course during 
the September school holidays (in the week before the intensive 
Bronze course) in order to break the group into two. 

For the first time, we were able to deliver the Training Officer 
qualification in-house, rather than at State Centre. This is a major 
step forward to increase our trainer (and assessor) numbers, and 
proved to be a great opportunity to share knowledge and learning 
across clubs, as twelve members from six different clubs 
participated in our session. A wonderful; success ! 

 This season also saw a welcome return to training the Pain 
Management award, after a two year hiatus. After much work by 
SLSA and SLSWA to have our licence to deliver Methoxyflurane (aka 
the ‘Green Whistle’) reinstated, John Summers delivered two training 
and requalification sessions to get our patrolling members back up 
to speed. 

The only award we are still waiting to be able to deliver is the Silver 
Medallion Patrol Captain course (which used to be known as Beach 
Management). The resources for this updated curriculum have been 
several years in the making, and we have many of our younger PC’s 
and VC’s who would benefit immensely from this training. We 
believe that SLSWA will have the new resources and at least one of 
our trainers qualified to deliver this course at the start of next season.  

In the meantime, and as a result of the tragic shark attack at Port 
Beach, John Summers and I developed some in-house critical 
incident training for our patrol leadership team. The half-day session, 
was delivered to around ten of our leaders and covered theoretical 
aspects of communication, teamwork, hands-off leadership and 
interaction with emergency services, followed by  three complex 
real-life scenarios - including simulated patients and use of radios. 

The Life Saving and Education Committee would like to applaud 
Jess Simpson as this year’s winner of the Club’s Trainer/Assessor of 
the Year. In addition to being our Life Saving Manager, Jess not only 

coordinated and delivered the training to our Youth SRC cohort (ably 
supported of course by Madeleine Stockden and our other trainers), 
but in between, she also managed to fit in some Bronze training and 
contributed to almost all of the BM and SRC skills maintenance 
checks early in the summer. We thank you Jess for your amazing 
dedication ! 

Our commercial training this year was somewhat reduced on 
previous years, mainly due to COVID restrictions, but our volunteer 
and unpaid trainers - Kelly Aitken-Fox, Lawson Mills, John Summers, 
Leanne Coverley-Brandis, plus myself - still delivered six courses 
covering Community Surf Rescue and Provide First Aid, bringing in 
$4,580 to the Club. Huge thanks these energetic trainers for their 
generosity ! 

Finally, we delivered our Multicultural Beach and Surf Safety training 
for the eighth year to our usual schools - Lynwood SHS and 
Aranmore CC.  This year ,we had a record number of participants 
(around 120) and these in-class and beach sessions are something 
that the students look forward to each year.  

My heartfelt thanks to everyone who contributed to maintaining our 
excellent reputation for high quality training this year. 

 
2021-22 2020-21 

 Certificate IV in Training and Assessment 1 - 

 Certificate II in Public Safety (Aquatic Rescue) - - 

 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques  52 13 

 Bronze Medallion 55 50 

 First Aid 3 48 

 IRB Crew Certificate 11 27 

 Pain Management Certificate  2 14 

 Radio Operator Certificate 2 4 

 Rescue Water Craft Operator Certificate - 5 

 Silver Medallion IRB Driver 8 8 

 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 67 79 

 WA Assessor - 1 

 WA Facilitator (First Aid, ART AID) - 4 

 WA Silver Medallion Beach Management  3 - 

 WA Training Officer (Bronze Medallion) - - 

 WA Training Officer (IRB, RWC) - 2 

 WA Training Officer Certificate 5 6 

Jess Simpson receives the Trainer/Assessor of the Year award from Mike Shaw 
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Marketing Report 
Mick Burke 

S 

urf clubs are expensive to operate, even with most of the work 
being done by volunteer members.  While our major source of 

annual income is membership fees, the financial and in-kind 
contributions from our sponsors supports our club to provide the 
essential equipment needed for the provision of lifesaving services 
and the training of patrolling members. 

Melville Toyota continued this 
season as a major sponsor with 
their provision of the Club’s patrol 
4WD vehicle, including registration 
and servicing. The vehicle is, of 
course, an integral part of surf 
patrol equipment, setting up for 
nippers, and the transport of surf 
craft and equipment.    

Clear Orthodontic Studio Cottesloe, under 
director Christoph Bottoni, joined us during 
this season as a major financial sponsor.  
Christoph, a former Swiss Olympian, has 
embraced Fremantle Surf Club life by 
attending club functions including 
speaking at the State Championships 
Team Dinner.  We look forward to a long 
relationship with Clear Orthodontic Studio 
Cottesloe. 

City of Fremantle provides financial support 
for our Club’s community safety and 
engagement work. The City also provides 
administrative support for the Club’s grant 
applications. We also thank our Club Patron, 
Mayor Hannah Fitzhardinge for her dedicated 
support from the City. 

 

We would like to thank Lisa O’Malley (Club 
Patron and MLA Bicton) for facilitating a $15,000 
grant through the Department of Sport Small 
Grants process. Patrol equipment, first aid 
supplies and training equipment was also 
provided by the WA Government under that 
programme.  

The strong relationship with the Port Beach Polar Bears continued 
when our Director of Lifesaving Liam Burke was presented with a 
substantial sponsorship donation at a Port Beach Annexe event. This 
amazing group of open water swimmers have been financial 
supporters of the club for many years. In his address, Liam thanked 
the Polar Bears on behalf of the Club and highlighted that we share a 
common love and respect for the beach environment and 
community.  

A new defibrillator and cabinet 
located on the wall of the Club 
building was funded by a St John/
Lotterywest grant.  A further 
defibrillator on the Port Beach 
Annex wall was secured through a 
WA Government grant. We thank 
Club Patron, Lisa O’Malley MLA for 
her support in this area.   

Alex Bajada, also a Club Patron, is currently funding his third new surf 
boat for the Club.  Alex’s ongoing support for the purchase of 
expensive competition craft has seen Fremantle match it with the 

best surf boat rowers in the state over recent years 
and culminated with our crew making the Reserve Men’s finals at this 
year’s Aussies.  Alex generosity doesn’t stop at surf boats, as he is 
also funding the purchase of a new surf ski for the Club. Our Club Ski 
Captain identified the need for a second new competition surf ski for 
the coming season.  Michele Kershaw has been a great supporter at 
formal club functions and has generously funded that purchase.   

SLSWA major sponsor Woodside again provided financial support 
and equipment for juniors at every surf club throughout WA via the 
Woodside Nippers program. 

Aussie Natural Spring Water continues as a long-time sponsor of the 
club with the provision of bottled water for our Club building as well 
as a number of events.  

Fremantle Steel has been a financial sponsor of the Club for many 
seasons, with their contribution going directly into the purchase of 
patrol lifesaving equipment. 

Mincon have also continued their club support, with a focus on the 
Club’s Starfish Nippers program. 

Healthways provides funding to the Club to promote healthy life 
choices, a value shared in common with the Club.  

Fremantle Ports was again a financial supporter of our Club, as well 
as enabling our surf lifesaving display at the maritime day. 

Gratitude is extended to Spencer Cranston and Chevron for their 
significant donations during the season.  Coast Port Beach continues 
to support the club with provision of hospitality services.   

Gotcha4life is a national initiative providing mental fitness 
programmes.  Our surf boat rowers and other club members 
supported the national Gotcha4life fundraising initiative through 
participation in the ‘24 hr row’.  We enjoyed the support of sponsors 
Lisa O’Malley MLA, Bib & Tucker, and Orange Box 
Café for this event.  

Tony Bowers of Churchill Imaging continues to give 
us spectacular views of club and competition 
activities through his camera lens. Our Annual 
Report simply wouldn’t be the same without Tony’s 
endless support.  

The Fremantle Ocean Classic open water swim 
event raised over $13,000 this year.  This high 
profile event couldn’t run without sponsors – Funky 
Monkey Bars,  Finz Swimwear, Mint Real Estate, Aussie Natural 
Water, Ross Shaw, Powerhouse Surf, Churchill Imaging, Coast Port 
Beach, The Orange Box, Emily Taylor,  Thank you to the large number 
of Club members who provided water safety, marshalling, catering 
and registration.  

Our Commercial Training group had a very successful year running 
Community Surf Rescue and First Aid courses. As a result of eight 
courses run (with all money earned by the trainers going directly to 
the Club), over $4,580.00 was raised.  

The Fremantle Surf Life Saving Club 
personalised car number plates are a 
Club fundraising initiative, and new 
plates are available.  Make sure you 
see Jo in the office if you want one ! The ‘100 Club’ fundraising 
initiative is building momentum and we hope to have to our display 
board completely filled with names during next season.  

Finally, my thanks to the Marketing Committee of Cait Jameson, Nick 
Poynton, Alex Bajada and Jo Jameson 
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Junior Development Report 

Kirsty Moore 

T 

he 2021-22 season has seen our Club go through some tough 
times, but as a family we have come together and had another 

epic season. Our 596 Nippers and their families have showed 
amazing resilience and strength, pulling together to have a very 
busy season developing their surf life saving skills through the 
Woodside Nippers Program. 

Under the expertise and watchful eyes of our Age Group Managers, 
our Nippers across eight age groups learn the necessary skills and 
experience in surf sports, rescue, beach awareness, team activities, 
sportsmanship and, above all, inclusivity. More than 90 percent of 
our Nippers completed the program thanks to our dedicated nipper 
volunteers, AGMs and water safety. 

Aimed at all levels of fitness, Fremantle’s Nipper program has a 
place and a role for everyone, making surf life saving a great option 
for all families. 

Age Group Manager Refresher Training 

Before our Nippers hit the beach in October, the Junior 
Development Committee was working hard to develop their 
coaching skills and planning for an epic season.  

For the most part, AGMs at our Club are parents who want to see 
their children develop their confidence in the Western Australian 
surf. While we do see many former Nipper members return with 
their own children later in life, few parents are senior members 
themselves, and many are experiencing surf life saving for the first 
time. 

To support our volunteer AGMs through their tenure, we have 
introduced a compulsory annual Age Group Manager training 
program. This program is designed to support the education and 
development of our AGM’s and ensure they are coaching 
techniques that are consistent across all age groups, with the most 
modern practices in human movement and physiology. 

Nipper Camp hits its COVID curveball with ‘Plan B’  

With only three weeks to go, COVID hit WA and restrictions 
commenced - our annual three day Nipper Camp event for U/11’s, 

U/12’s and U/13’s was threatened.  Deciding not to give up, a Plan B 
was hatched so our Nippers did not miss out entirely. 

From 7am, 75 Nippers and 15 Support Volunteers signed in at Dutch 
Inn, South Cottesloe and started their ‘Super Epic Fun Day’. We 
managed to jam in 41 hours of usual Nipper Camp experiences 
(hardly any of those include sleep) into 12 ‘hours of power’. By 5pm, 
it’s safe to say we had 90 weary members. 

The day included snorkelling, singing, swimming and 
splashing.  radio comms with Patrol, exploring hidden pathways and 
discovering local landmarks - all of which delivered locally 
focussed learning and connection to our beach and our Club.  As 
‘Freo Rangers’, everyone carried their own stuff, marched home in 
soaked sandy sneakers and stayed sun smart all day.  We can 
handle any challenge – and have fun at the same time! 

Memorable highlights include; 

• Camp names such as Salty Dawg, Flipper, Tendies & HallGee 

• A snorkelling Nipper proudly exclaim ‘I’m tying my shoe laces 

under water!’ 

• Spotting a dead crayfish, painted rocks, a golf ball and a 

‘HUUUGE FISH THIIIS BIG !!’ at Dutch Inn. 

• Making friends with Cottesloe Parkrun group 

• Archery attack! 

• Beautiful art contributions to the Nipper Camp mural 

• Hearing “I LOVE celery!” at lunch time 

• The loudest version ever of ‘I WANT TO BE A FREO RANGER’ 

song.  (Seriously – bring that strength to States guys!  You should 
all be very proud of that monstrous effort.). 

Vegemite sandwiches 

A huge thank you to all families who adapted to our super epic fun 
day ‘Plan B’ event.  Furthermore, a special thank you to our great 
Club who supported Plan B - specifically, Mick in the canteen, Jo in 
the office, Liam and his Patrol team, Adam at Blue Gecko and 
Vanessa Pribble for graphic design services. 

Finally, the following bunch of members truly deserve a huge 
congratulations for not only giving up hours of their time to make 
the event happen, but also a lot of their sanity - 

Nippers learning board rescue techniques - and having fun ! 

AGM’s learning about human movement, as part of their new annual program 

Kirsty Moore (right), receiving the ‘Service to Junior Lifesaving and 

Development Award’ from Director of Development, Marcin Gabriel 
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Volunteer Army, led by Lisa Highman, Adam Dees, Jo Dees, Matt 
Lane, Niamh Leonard, Lucas Camilleri, Jack Dowie, Irene Mulryan, 
Carl Young, Jack Hadley, Claire Dean, Jason Dean, Tony Bowers, Kate 
Reid, Dave Chitty, Cas Gabriels  

 SLSWA Nipper  Club Achiever Award 

Matilda Power was nominated this year as Fremantle’s representative 
for the SLSWA Nipper Club Achiever Award. This annual award is 
presented by SLSWA to recognise the service and dedication of our 
hard-working Nippers. Matilda is a valuable member of the U/13’s 
group and someone the Club is very proud of. 

Matilda joined Fremantle as an U6 Nipper 
and has been a team player and individual 
achiever since. She is a pleasant young lady, 
who is confident in her own skin. Matilda 
quietly goes about taking the lead when 
needed or asked, but also happy to 
encourage others to take the lead. She 
doesn’t need to be the focus of attention, 
and moves amongst her peers in a gentle, 
respectful but firm manner. 

Being a relatively strong and long ฀standing 
nipper Matilda often teams her up with the 
less experienced or newer members when 
doing team sports. After finishing her race, 
she is more than willing to swim alongside her team mates as 
support. 

Congratulations on your nomination, Matilda ! 

 U/13’s moving on up 

Our U/13’s group have now graduated from our Nipper program and 
will next season join the Youth age group and start their Surf Rescue 
Certificates. Under the watchful eyes, creativity, commitment and 
encouragement of Neil Ferguson, Jason Dean, Annette McWilliams, 
Zan Gamble and with the assistance of Rebecca Schofield, this group 
have created life-long bonds and a passion for surf life saving. On 
behalf of the Nippers and parents, thank you for all that you’ve done 
over the years.  

 

 

2022 State Championships 

A focus of Nippers this year was to drive the surf sports pillar of Surf 
Live Saving. Our Age Group Manager’s worked closely with the Surf 
Sports Committee and our discipline Captains to give specialised 
training and skills during our Sunday Sessions. 

It was very encouraging to see a 34 per cent increase in Fremantle  
competitors at Junior State Titles this year.  Nearly 100 Fremantle 
competitors enjoyed three days of competition at Scarborough 
Beach, showing incredible resilience in very challenging conditions, 
amazing team spirit and grit. As parents and AGM’s, we loved seeing 
the kids keep running in to huge surf and having a fantastic time 
doing it, particularly the team events. 

One stand out highlight was watching all our members in the Colour 
March, demonstrating some Fremantle pride in their State Titles 
shirts and Fremantle caps. Thank you to the Surf Sports Committee, 
the army of volunteers and parents who made it all possible. 

There were lots of amazing individual and team results, both with 
medals won, and personal bests. Special mention has to be made of 
Georgia Baber who was awarded U10 State Age Champion as the 
highest performing athlete at the 2022 SunSmart WA Nipper Surf Life 
Saving Championships. 

Lifesaver of the year recipients 

Congratulations to all our Nippers who will receive their Surf 
Education certificates at the beginning of the next season. While all 
of our junior members are brilliant, there are a few who were 
awarded the prestigious Lifesaver of the Year medals for the 2021-22 
season. Congratulations to - 

Under 7 - Isla Shemeld, Campbell Rose 

Under 8 - Kathryne Choo 

Under 9 - Bailey McCormick, James Thornely 

Under 10 - Georgia Baber, Austin Sutherland 

Under 11 - Savannah Blackwood, Benjamin Somers, 

      Kobe-Jackson Peppin 

Under 12 - Amber Farrell, Pieter Prinsloo 

Under 13 - Therese Robertson, Cooper Jacobs 

Thank you to our volunteers 

Without out our amazing cohort of volunteers, we wouldn’t be able 
to share in all the successes of this season. On behalf of the Club, 
we’d like to thank our Nippers and their parent support group, the 
water safety volunteers who got wet - rain, hail or shine; our Water 
Safety Coordinator, Rob Blascetta, for making sure all our Nippers 
were safe, week in and week out; our weekly patrols, IRB teams, 
officials and trainers who have helped with both the surf education 
program at Leighton Beach, and some long hours at carnivals; our 
Junior Competition Coordinator, Richard Dreverman, for his expertise 
and support; Ian Clarke, who put in many hours developing a new 
annual training program for existing Age Group Managers and for 
recruiting and training all our new Age Group Managers and Nipper 
Rescue Certificate recipients; and of course to Tony Bowers, who 
immortalises each season with some fantastic photos and brilliant 
memories.   

The biggest thank you goes to our AGM’s. This group of dedicated 
people put in long hours on and off the beach to ensure our massive  
cohort have the best experience possible for 22 weeks of the year. 
This doesn’t start in mid-October when our excited Nippers arrive to 
start the season - it’s all year round. Without the crew in bright 
yellow, our program would not be possible. Thank you again for your 
tireless efforts year in and year out. 

We look forward to seeing everyone back on the beach next season. 

The Fremantle team in the Colour March at Junior States 

Matilda Power 
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Youth Development Report 

David Moody 

T 

he Youth Program at Fremantle has several objectives - 

 

• To facilitate the learning of skills amongst the Youth cohort to 

enable them to become competent life savers; 

• To support those Youth interested in competitive activities to 

compete successfully at State and hopefully National 
Championships; 

• To create a safe environment in which our Youth can grow and 

develop leadership skills that are valuable life skills within and 
outside of the Surf Life Saving environment; 

• To provide a diverse range of enjoyable activities, supporting 

health and fitness, that encourages Youth members to remain 
within the Surf Life Saving fraternity. 

During the 2021-22 season, I and the Youth AGM team - Madeleine 
Stockden, Chris Cleave, Ian ‘Jock’ McLachlan, Rod Pavolich, Kate 
Schick  - sought to achieve these objectives with a group of 239 
Youth members (U/14’s – 54, U/15’s – 62, U/17’s – 79 and U/19’s – 
44). 

We were supported in these endeavours by our Club’s excellent 
educational leaders, Mike Shaw for Bronze training and Jess 
Simpson and Madeleine Stockden for SRC training.  We were also 
supported by many of our other volunteer trainers and assessors to 
ensure achievement in these important life saving awards.  Thank 
you to all the AGMs for your tremendous support in assisting with 
this training.  Special thanks to Kate Schick for taking on the onerous 
role of communications officer for the Youth and handling that role 
with aplomb. For all of us, it has been a pleasure to manage and see 
the development of our future Club leaders and members. 

2021-22 Youth Program   

The structured elements of the Bronze and SRC training occupied 
the first ten weeks of the twenty-week season for the Under 14’s 
and Under 16’s. Outside of these training programs, the beach 
activities consisted of warmups, Club swims, semi-competitive surf 
training sports and generally concluded with recreational sports 
such as volleyball.   

During January, there was a strong focus on the Club Swim and Club 
Run events leading to awards presented at the Surf Sports Awards 
Night. In addition, there was an introductory session on skis 
provided by Jon Standing and helpers, and a board training session 
run by Matt Elliott. 

During February, 52 Youth spent a day together on Rottnest Island, 
cycling, swimming, snorkelling and generally relaxing with their 
peers.  The support and enthusiasm for the Rottnest trip was almost 
unprecedented and indicate that social and leisure activities are an 
important reason why the Youth become members at our Club. 

As part of the Club’s recognition of the importance of the region to 
the local indigenous people, a Youth “hoodie” was designed, using 
the sand mural generated by Roni Forrest from WILDFIRE, an 
Indigenous Education and Cultural Consultancy firm.  The hoodies 
were presented to the Youth by Roni and Simon Forrest, who 
emphasised the importance of youth in the indigenous culture and 
the role our Youth can play in raising the level of recognition of 
indigenous culture in our community. 

An additional activity post-season was for Youth members to march 
with the HMAS Sydney Association alongside the veterans in the 
ANZAC Day parade.  The Association is enthusiastic for this 
involvement to continue due to the long-standing relationship 
between our Club and the HMAS Sydney Memorial. 

Training and Leadership Development 

In total, 67 Youth graduated with the SRC award and 33 Youth 
gained their Bronze Medallion awards. All of these graduates have 
all been rostered into surf life saving patrols at Fremantle and are to 
be congratulated for the considerable time and commitment to 
achieve these awards and join our volunteering patrolling 
community in Surf Life Saving. 

In addition, 14 Youth graduated with IRB Crew certificates, and 4 
achieved a Silver Medallion as IRB Drivers.  Two Youth undertook 

The Rottnest day trip was a huge hit ! 

Youth members supporting the HMAS Sydney Association on Anzac Day 
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Pain Management training, another undertook Advanced 
Resuscitation and 11 undertook the Provide First Aid training. 

As has become a feature at the Club, several of our Youth provided 
essential support to the Club’s Starfish Nippers.  This program, which 
is designed for children and young adults with a disability to teach 
them about beach safety and harness their water awareness, 
provides opportunities for Youth members interested in service 
activities as opposed to competition. 

Congratulations to - 

• Cameron Currey and Claire Dean for being selected for the RISE 

UP leadership camp; 

• Matilda Smith, Eva Longstaff, Finn Williams and Anthony Plange-

Korndorfer for being selected for the TOAD leadership camp; 

• Jack Hadley being awarded the SLSWA Youth Club Achiever 

Due to outstanding levels of involvement and commitment in a 
whole range of activities, the following Youth members have been 
recognized for their Club contribution - 

• Under 14 Encouragement Award - Riley Job 

• Under 15 Encouragement Award - Helen Smith 

• Under 17 Encouragement Award - Sally Clark 

Competition 

The Youth program this season had an increased focus on 
competition, with Club swim and Club Run events featuring regularly 
as part of the Sunday sessions. 

Due to the importance of competition in maintaining interest in being 
part of a Surf Life Saving Club, and thereby increasing the numbers 
of qualified lifesavers staying on through their late teens and into 
their twenties, the Surf Sports Committee actively promoted a 
greater level of involvement in competitive activities across the Club. 

As part of this increased focus, the Youth program had regular Club 
swim and Club Run events throughout the season culminating in 
awards for the overall winners. Under the guidance of Paul Whitby, 
this season marked a solid return for the Fremantle Youth Surf 
Sports team. A small but dedicated group of athletes attended 

SLSWA carnivals throughout the year. Carnivals give our surf life 
saver athletes the opportunity to use their life saving skills in a 
competitive sporting environment across a range of disciplines. We 
had competitors competing at - 

• Secret Harbour SLSC Carnival   

• Sorrento SLSC Carnival    

• State Rescue Championships    

• State Surf Life Saving Championships.  

The season culminated in the State Championships at Scarborough 
Beach on 12-13 March. Our Youth had 30 U/14 to U/17 competitors 
at the Championships, competing in a range of water and beach 
events. Fremantle placed 8th in the Champion Youth Club, with the 
overall Champion Youth Club being Trigg Island.   

The weekend delivered several medals (including three Silver and 
four Bronze) for the Club and lots of finalists and personal bests. The 
following individuals and teams are to be congratulated for their 
effort and results over the weekend - 

• Eben Prinsloo - 2nd 2KM Beach Run, 3rd U/17 Ironman, 3rd U/17 

Surf Race  

• Tom Dreverman - 3rd U/15 Ironman   

• U/17 Male Surf Teams - 2nd (Hayden Ferguson, Eben Prinsloo, 

Jonah Whitby and Marcus Dalley)  

• U/15 Male Surf Teams - 2nd (Sam Connolly, Tom Dreverman, 

Elliott Kane and Anthony Plange-Korndorfer)  

• U/15 Male Beach Relay - 3rd (Lachlan Sofield , Sam Connolly, 

Seth Shaw and Finnbar Williams   

Lastly thanks to all the competitors and their supportive families for 
all the assistance across the season. Lots of laughs and loads of 
resilience and determination on show.  

Our Under 17 female R&R team took the silver medal at States 

Eben Prinsloo and Tom Dreverman - outstanding Youth competitors 

Riley Job (left), Helen Smith (centre) and Sally Clark receive their Encouragement awards from Jay Morgan  
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Social Committee Report 

Kate Burke 

T 

his season, we had a champion team of twelve volunteers who 
sat on the Social Committee. This committee represented a 

strong cross section of our Surf Club, and our aim was to create 
events that could address the diversity of the Club’s population.  

Season Opener  

We started the season with a Hawaiian Night event for the entire 
Club. There were prizes for the best dressed male and female as 
well as best dressed kids. Acoustic musician Jake Robinson played 
some cracking songs that had all the kids up and dancing, as well as 
some of the adults too. Marcin Gabriel, Director of Development, 
was tasked with the job of awarding prizes to the best dancers. The 
Social Committee served hot beef and gravy rolls with the salads of 
every variety. It was a beautiful night that set the tone for the 
season.  

24Hr Row  

The Social Committee assisted with this great cause by providing 
the entertainment. We had music playing, hired lawn games as well 
as setting up a movie screen. Social Committee member Clara 
Moody helped to bring in the morning with Yoga on the lawn. The 
mood was electric and it was great to see members coming and 
going throughout the 24hrs.  

Outside the Locker Room  

Another big event the Social Committee participated in was the 
Mental Health sessions run by Outside the Locker Room. Held on 
Friday nights as a Sundowner, the workshops provided Club 
members with ways to support their own mental health and to look 
after other peoples. The workshops were really well received, and 
the Social Committee were really proud to be able to help facilitate 
these occurring.  

Christmas Markets  

A HUGE event the Social Committee organised was the Christmas 
Markets. We had 40 stalls spread across the Club’s lawn and inside 
the buildings, a dramatic increase on the previous year. We had a 
“Surfie Santa” available for photos, and we displayed the Club’s 
equipment for potential members. The markets were a great 
fundraising event, but also a nice way of including the diversity of 
club members whilst showcasing the beautiful facilities we have. A 
huge thanks to Liz Pitts, Jess Simpson and Sheridan Robson for 
making this possible.  

Christmas Party  

This was held after Twilight Nippers, with a visit from Santa. The 
Christmas Party was catered by Mr Paella, with two scrumptious 
paellas that were very popular. Lawn games were available to play, 
and we had many kids dressing up in their Christmas costumes.  

Gingerbread Making event  

Leading up to Christmas, the Social Committee ran a Gingerbread 
Making afternoon. The afternoon saw kids and adults alike carefully 
decorate their gingerbread houses with a magnitude of lollies and 
garnishes. The room was alight with Christmas cheer and songs and 
everyone went home with outstandingly decorated houses.  

Pink Patrol  

On International Women’s Day, to celebrate ‘Women in Surf’, the 
Social Committee held a Pink Patrol. It was well attended with about 
20 women, with First Aiders, SRC and Bronze holders participating in 
the event. Each person brought sanitary donations that we donated 
through Clutterbugs to Women’s Refuges. Following the Patrol, 
Coast Port Beach hosted us for a Ladies Luncheon. It was nice way 
to celebrate women’s role in surf and to develop strong female 
networks within the club. We will continue to grow this patrol next 
year.  

Annual Dinner  

The Annual Dinner this year was held at the Tradewinds. It was 
coupled again with the Surf Sports awards, resulting in an 
extravagant night of celebration.  It is always surprising seeing 
people at the Annual Dinner looking glamourous, as we are so used 
to beach attire, but everyone scrubbed up well. This year we had an 
additional segment - a Panel led by Jessica Simpson.  Carol Duffield, 
Graham Walton and Larry Tilbury spoke of the Club’s history and 
told comical stories about how the club used to operate. The Social 
Committee thought this addition was a nice way to keep history 
alive in the club. A ginormous thank you needs to go to our Youth 
MCs Jack Hadley and Sean Dickson, who ran the event. Once the 
formalities were over, everyone partied well into the night with DJ 
Eshan who had nearly everyone on the dance floor with the sickest 
dance moves I have seen in a while.  

Social events are fundamental in clubs, and they tie us together. So, 
thank you to EVERYONE who attended an event, you are the 
inspiration that keeps us going. A huge thanks to my Social 
Committee - you were amazing!! And lastly Jo Jameson in the office, 
you have been instrumental in every event we have thrown - from 
organising stock in the bar to finding the best deal on food. You 
have been beyond amazing in making sure the events are 
successful. Thank you!!  

Everyone, I will see you next year with more exciting social events.  

Ethan Shaw (left) and Nick Poynton putting in the kilometres for the 24 hr Row 

The Panel, with Larry Tilbury, Graham Walton, Carol Duffield and Jess Simpson 

A big turnout for this year’s Pink Patrol, on a great Leighton day 



Club Championship Trophies and Member Awards 

Best Club Member 
Best Patrol Member 

Boat Person of the Year 
IRB Person of the Year 

Ron Bennett Medal 
Service to Junior Lifesaving 

and Development 

Cath Morgan 

Jake Silipo 

James Currey 

Milly Sales 

Eben Prinsloo 

 

Kirsty Moore 

Best Club Member Awards 

Club Champions 

Open Male 

U19 Male 

U17 Male 

U15 Male 

U14 Male 

Masters Male 

 

Open Female 

U19 Female 

U17 Female 

U15 Female 

U14 Female 

Masters Female 

Surf Race 

Hayden Ferguson 

- 

Hayden Ferguson 

Tom Dreverman 

Riley Job 

Ian Clarke 

 

Olivia Power 

- 

Olivia Power 

Milly Sullivan 

Poppy Rawlings 

- 

Malibu Board 

Eben Prinsloo 

- 

Eben Prinsloo 

Tom Dreverman 

Noah O’Hehir 

Ian Clarke 

 

Gabby Gibbons 

- 

Gabby Gibbons 

Chelsea Stockden 

Poppy Rawlings 

Katrina Measey 

Surf Ski 
Ian Clarke 

- 

Eben Prinsloo 

- 

- 

Ian Clarke 

 

Katrina Measey 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Beach Sprint 
Angus McLachlan 

- 

Angus McLachlan 

Lachlan Sofield 

Jack Groom 

Dorian Moro 

 

Milly Sullivan 

- 

Gabby Gibbons 

Macie Brennan 

Ginger Archer 

Katrina Measey 

Beach Flags 

Angus McLachlan 

 

Angus McLachlan 

Lachlan Sofield 

Isaac Ashe 

Peter Smith 

 

Jess Stackhouse 

- 

Maia Ravenscroft 
Sophia Morkel 
Ginger Archer 

Katrina Measey 

Iron Person 

Eben Prinsloo 

- 

Eben Prinsloo 

Tom Dreverman 

Riley Job 

Ian Clarke 

 

Gabby Gibbons 

- 

Gabby Gibbons 

Milly Sullivan 

Poppy Rawlings 

- 

2km Run 

Eben Prinsloo 

- 

Eben Prinsloo 

Lachlan Sofield 

Rhys Cameron 

Dorian Moro 

 

Katrina Measey 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Katrina Measey 

HMAS Sydney II Tube Race 

1600m Swim 

Hayden Ferguson & Fiona Carroll 
Hayden Ferguson & Olivia Power 

Perpetual Surf Sports Trophy Winners 

U/10 Female Surf Teams 

 

U/11 Female Surf Teams 

 

U/10 Female Beach Sprint 
U/10 Female Surf Race 

40-44 Female Beach Sprint 
40-44 Female Surf Race 

45-49 Female Board Race 

45-49 Female Surf Race 

50-54 Male Beach Flags 

50-54 Male Beach Sprint 
50-54 Male Ironman 

50-54 Male Surf Race 

55-59 Female Surf Race 

Arianna Steadman, Georgia Baber, 
Molly Smith, Nyila Ballal 
Ella Cameron, Maggie Gregorevic, 
Olivia Woodhead, Torah Howe 

Georgia Baber    

Georgia Baber 

Kinga Hague 

Jette Oksis 

Fiona Carroll 
Fiona Carroll 
Dorian Moro 

Dorian Moro 

Brad Ravenscroft 
Brad Ravenscroft 
Tracey Shaw 

State Champions 

Trainer/Assessor of the Year 
Jason Shortte Memorial (U19) 

U17 Encouragement Award 

U15 Encouragement Award 

U14 Encouragement Award 

Jess Simpson 

Ethan Shaw 

Sally Clark 

Helen Smith 

Riley Job 

Medallists & Finalists at the Australian Surf Life Saving Championships 

Men’s Reserves Surf Boats  FINALIST  Fajitas (Sweep Michael Cameron, 
      Andrew Robson, Pat Wilson, 
      Alec Vukovich, Liam Burke) 

State Champions (from left) - U/10 Surf team, U/11 Surf team, Georgia Baber, Kinga Hague, Fi Carroll, Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw, Dorian Moro, Brad Ravenscroft 
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Director of Surf Sports Report 

Tracey Irving 

T 

he 2021-22 season was a year for rebuilding the Surf Sports 
team with a strong Surf Sports Committee, driven by the mighty 

Cath Morgan in the role of Surf Sports Manager. Cath ensured that 
our surf sports framework and key objectives were either met or on 
the way.  Also, a huge thanks to all the members of the Committee.  
As a result of this teamwork, we have a growing number of Club 
athletes who competed in a diverse range of surf sport disciplines 
this season. We celebrated all competitors’ achievements at the Surf 
Sports Awards night and in this Report.  

Competition 

Our interclub competitive season was kicked off at the SunSmart 
Pool Rescue Championships. The team, whilst small in numbers, had 
a great determination to succeed. Training and competition has 
commenced for the current season and we hope to see the team 
represent the club with the esteem that all Fremantle competitors 
have shown in previous seasons. 

A young Fremantle team competed in a shortened season of IRB 
competition, culminating in the State Championships at Scarborough. 
The team, under the guidance of Liz Pitts and Lawson Mills achieved 
some satisfying results, finishing in an overall third place, behind the 
top guns at Mullaloo, and some close competition from Scarborough. 
Thank you to the IRB team and the wonderful group of Club 
members that make the season a success. 

There was a significant increase in the number of athletes involved in 
intraclub competition, with a regular Club Swim friendly ‘Sheep 
Stations’ competition alongside a Club points competition driven by 
Dorian Moro and Tracey Shaw. Club members made connections and 
built relationships, having fun whilst ensuring that the standard and 
enjoyment by all competitors remained high and I look forward to 
building on these Club traditions in the seasons to come. Fitting our 
Club Championship events in to a tightly packed calendar that is 
getting busier each year is indeed a challenge and meant that some 
of our athletes were denied the opportunity to fight it out in the water 
and beach arenas due to clashes with SLSWA events. Despite this, 
there was a great Club atmosphere at these events which can be 
attributed to the excellent organisation and communication from our 
SS Manager. It will be a priority next season to ensure that all 
championship events will be a highlight of the calendar and 
accessible to as many athletes as possible. Congratulations to Club 
Champions and thank you to the dedicated Sunday morning team!  

The junior and youth surf sports committee members, Richard 
Dreverman and Paul Whitby, rose to the challenge of building our 
junior and youth surf sports numbers to ensure that Fremantle, once 
again, features prominently on the dais.  Our Juniors continue to 
show that they have what it takes to make Fremantle a leading 
competitive club in the years to come. The sustained success and 
emerging growth of our competition team this season was in part 
due to the professional conduct and expertise of our coaches and 
aspiring junior coaches who are invaluable to our club and 
community. I would like to recognise Peter Smith, our Nippers coach 
and U/14 manager, whose commitment to our team and the pillar of 
surf sports, has resulted in a significant increase in interest and 
participation in the board and fitness side of surf life saving. This 
includes the formation of a youth boat team, learning the finer 
techniques of rowing surfboats ready for the coming years. Thanks 
Pedro! 

The satisfaction of winning is enormous but even more pleasing is 
the good sportsmanship that we value at Fremantle being noted and 
commented upon. At carnivals, it is easy to get lost in the idea of 
winning and lose sight of what surf life saving is all about - mateship 
and teamwork. Fortunately, thanks to our wonderful Age Group 
Managers, our nippers and youth consistently showed the utmost 
respect for their opponents, on and off the playing field.  

Our youth and senior competitors, a small but mighty group, worked 
to achieve an overall 10th place. Our youth R&R team finished in 2nd 

place with several youth board rescue teams doing well at States. 
Masters was just as impressive, with our Masters athletes flocking to 
Mullaloo, with some excellent individual achievements.  

Fremantle Boaties, under the guidance of our most experienced surf 
sports captain, Nick Palmer, grew in numbers and skill. Welcoming 
more youth and masters – with the female crew the Kwilenas being 
recognised as most improved and a silver medal at States to show 
for it! We thank Alex Bajada for funding another surfboat – currently 
under construction.  

Thanks 

Once again, a core group of members stepped up and volunteered 
to ensure our surf sports athletes had the opportunity to compete. To 
our officials, water safety, IRB drivers and crews, thank you for your 
commitment!  A mandatory requirement for competition is fulfilling 
our official and water safety ratio at each carnival and championships. 
A very big thankyou! Giving time and expertise in the competition 
arena as an official is vital to our success and your efforts are highly 
respected and appreciated. My greatest thanks to you all. On the 
water, our IRB and water safety personnel were outstanding! Lawson 
Mills and Liz Pitts were exceptional in ensuring our IRB duties at all 
carnivals were covered by qualified members. To all of the age/team 
Managers, thanks so much for all of your help at carnivals - you’re 
amazing. Your time and efforts are appreciated and if we are to build 
our surf sports teams it can only be done with the commitment and 
support of a great number of people. Thanks to the Life Saving 
Committee for their ongoing support for the surf sports section of our 
Club. As a collective we can achieve great things. 

 “Teamwork makes the dream work!” 

I would like to thank all the parents and care givers for their support 
of our competitors, getting them to and from training and carnivals, 
helping with setting up and packing up. Most importantly I would like 
to acknowledge our competitors, from juniors through to masters. 
We are certainly fortunate to have so many talented competitors 
across a number of disciplines, I couldn’t be more proud of how our 
members conducted themselves at all competitions. There have 
been plenty of highs and lows throughout the season and no doubt 
many wonderful memories have been made. 

Moving Forward 

The challenge each season is to improve on these high standards of 
performance. With this in mind and the excellent results this season, 
the retention and building of our surf sports team of competitors and 
coaches for this coming season will be a challenge and a priority. The 
coaching plan is currently being reviewed and tweaked with the aim 
to continue to build coaching capacity through training/mentoring 
and provide more opportunities for our athletes. This includes key 
nipper Age Group Managers joining the surf sports committee and 
driving improvement from the bottom up. Ensuring that our Sunday 
morning club swim and handicap races continue to be the highlight 
of our Sunday morning activities and that all prestigious senior Club 
Championships are well represented will be a focus for next season. 

Training programs and opportunities continue to be offered to our 
members across all areas within surf sports, with the need to provide 
our members with access to first class coaching resources still a 
priority. We hope to see an increased number of members 
participate in these training opportunities and the aim is to provide 
alternative pathways for existing and new members to transition 
between all areas of surf sports (including Pool Rescue, IRB, Surf 
Boats & Surf Skis) and most importantly build on our strong culture of 
surf sports competitors maintaining their enthusiastic and positive 
approach to their lifesaving and patrol obligations. 

The end of season 2021-22 at Fremantle, I look forward to what is 
ahead. 
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Board Captain Report 

Matt Elliott 

B 

oard training started at the end of third term school 
holidays, and we were blessed with nearly three weeks of 

great waves, and the banks at Leighton were perfect after good 
storms had moved the sand out. Special thanks go to Ian Clarke 
and his gang, who dug channels in the sand and opened some 
pooled water in front of the Club. By allowing the water to drain 
back into the sea, it also took out sand and formed an awesome 
bank. We were blessed with nice waves in front of the Club all 
winter and most of the summer. 

We had great participant numbers at the start of training, and all 
were learning quickly to catch waves. I kept telling them to make 
the most of these conditions before summer hit and Leighton 
had no waves to catch. 

Unfortunately, in early November, the shark attack at Port Beach 
forced us to change our way of thinking for ongoing training - we 
needed to keep the group together to get through issues that 
are associated with such a tragic event. Thank you to the parents 
and older members of the training group for helping me support 
the positive efforts in keeping the program going, and helping 
with anyone finding it hard to get back out. In the water. 

We changed our training program to be closer to shore and 
working up and down the coast in the shallower water. Over time, 
we moved further out to sea as our confidence grew as a group.  

The squad in the mornings had a mixture of hard-core masters, 
older fitness paddlers, new paddlers (particularly from the nippers) 
and so a program was organised to incorporate the whole range of 
skill sets while keeping the group together. The outcome of all of 
this was one of the best-attended, productive, happy, funny fitness 
programs ever done at the Club. 

We then started getting more younger under 14 and 16 females and 
males wanting to do fitness through board paddling. 

It became quite social, and even the parents were wondering why 
the kids wanted to attend 6am sessions, even on school holidays. 

It was a fresh breath to see so many youths enjoy the program as 
well as have fun and fitness. That is what our Club is all about and 

the building of friendships made in those mornings will place them 
and the Club in good stead. 

There were many funny moments, as well as good times with our 
dolphins always popping up to say hello, and when we played 
“Gibbo Ball”, there was a big attendance. Another highlight was the 
changing of guard of the older nippers under Pedro to move to the 
big boards and the older group. 

The “Board Honour” (where we line up and clap our boards as the 
young ones walk out of the water) is a pathway to progressing to 
the senior boards, and was also a special moment. 

From the masters to the nippers, we all performed well in the State 
Championships, taking many medals in individual board and team 
events - even after the loss of some of our star athletes. 

It was a fun and happy season with lots of laughter and great 
memories. That’s what it is all about. I look 
forward to starting the board sessions again in 
September 2022 and we hope to have training 
buoys out ready for the new program. 

Thank you to Pedro and your high energy for 
looking after the nippers. He is an amazing role 
model for the younger generations of our Club 
members.  

We have the Aussies in Perth in 2023 and would 
like to have as many competitors as possible 
from Fremantle competing in this great event. 

 

Malibu Board Club Champions - Gabby Gibbons (left) and Eben Prinsloo 

Fi Carroll (top left) won a gold medal in the 45-49 
Board race at Masters States; Jette Oksis (top right) 
and Tink Measey (bottom left) won silver medals in 
the 40-44 and 45-49 Board races respectively; and 
Tracey Shaw (bottom right) teamed up with Fi Carroll 
to take silver in the 45-49 Board Rescue race. 
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Nipper Board Program 

Peter ‘Pedro’ Smith 

A 

nother great year with the Fremantle Nipper Boarders in 2021.  

In 2021, our Nipper Boarders increased their focus on training 
at as many different locations as possible. Training on the Swan 
River during winter months and hitting the waves at Secret Harbour 
and Scarborough throughout the year, we managed to have some 
great adventures up and down our coast. 

The Fremantle Nipper Board Program focus is to include Nippers 
from all levels of Board Paddling experience - whether they are 
new to Surf Club, or Nippers pushing for medals at State 
Championships. In 2021, our Club introduced for the first time Little 
Nipper Board Training, which provided introductory Board Paddling 
sessions to our U/8’s and U/9’s from our Youth Board Coaches. 
The training sessions received great feedback and we are all 
excited about strengthening the Little Nipper Board Paddling in 
2022. 

To increase our competitiveness at State Championships in 2022, 
there was a big focus on increasing our weekly training volume 
compared to previous years. Starting in September on Saturday 
afternoons, the Nipper Board Training program increased gradually 
throughout the year to five days a week in January and February. 
This provided a great platform and best opportunity for our Nippers 
to perform at the 2022 State Championships. 

Another 2021 Nipper Board Training aim was to provide cross 
functional training to improve our board paddling performance. This 
helped to increase our overall strength, power and endurance while 
maintaining interest in our program. The Nipper Board Training 
introduced cross training activities such as boxing, functional beach 
weights such as kettle bells and ball slams. Our Nippers were 
regularly seen doing sprints over the pedestrian bridge with weight 
vests and awkward objects. 

To further improve the provision of Nipper Board Coaching, our 
2021 aim was to increase the number of Nipper Board Coaches for 
the following season. This season, we managed to increase our 
coaches from one to seven - with the introduction of Dean, 
Courtney, and Adam plus our two Youth Board Coaches, Riley and 
Matilda. Our hope is through the increased number of coaches we 
will be able to increase the number and timing of training sessions 
in 2022. 

 

 

 

 

From Top - 

Strength training 

Cross training, includes boxing and running 
with weights 

Putting in the long distances on the boards 

Left - 

A bit of fun after the hard work’s done 
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Swim Captain Report 

Tracey Shaw 

 T 

he 2021-22 season saw many chances for our elite swimmers 
to showcase their skills. 

We reinvented the Club Swim this season, with a 7.30am 
handicapped swim and a 9am non-handicapped swim. The prize for 
the handicapped swim went to Ian Clarke and the prizes for the 
female and male 9am Club Swim went to Helen Smith and Sam 
Connolly. Both events were won on a points system. 

The first Championship event for the season was the Pool Rescue 
State Championships at Joondalup Arena. We had some great 
results from our U/12 girls team - Alyssa Peake, Matilda Power, Evie 
Hussey and Hannah Morkel. Anthony Plange-Korndorfer also had a 
successful meet with an impressive medal haul. Kelton Rothnie 
didn’t miss a beat winning every U/17 men’s event. Well done 
Kelton. Fremantle came 6th overall. 

The second championship event was the Endurance 
Championships at Sorrento. Hayden Ferguson displayed his 
prowess in distance swimming coming 3rd in the U/17 2km swim 
and 5th in the Open event. 

Our annual fundraising swim event is the Fremantle Ocean Classic, 
also known as the ‘FOC’. We had a good attendance of about 300 
swimmers and some good results by Club members. Tracey Shaw 
and Fiona Carroll came second and third in the 1600m swim, Sam 
Connolly was the 7th male and Pieter Prinsloo was the 11th male to 
cross the line (at only 11 years of age). Evie Hussey was the first 
U/16 female and Ella Douglas the first 20-29 female. It was a great 
swim in reasonably good conditions. Thanks to our major sponsors 
Funky Monkey Bars, Ross Shaw and Finz and our other sponsors 
Coast Port Beach, Aussie Natural Spring Water, The Orange Box, 
Powerhouse Surf and Mint Real Estate. 

The season closed with the Senior State Championships at 
Scarborough Beach. Great performances were delivered by our 
men’s U/17 surf team - Marcus Dalley, Hayden Ferguson, Eben 
Prinsloo and Jonah Whitby - coming second in a field of other 
outstanding athletes. Eben Prinsloo also took bronze in the Men’s 
U/17 surf race. Poppy Rawlings and Thomas Dreverman achieved 
top four in their age groups. These awesome athletes will be a force 
to be reckoned with in the near future. 

Surf Race Club Champions - Olivia Power (left) and Hayden Ferguson 

U12/13 4x50m Obstacle Relay bronze (Evie Hussey, 
Alyssa Peake, Hannah Morkel, Matilda Power) 

U/17 Surf Teams silver (Hayden Ferguson, Eben Prinsloo, 
Jonah Whitby, Marcus Dalley) 

Male Youth Surf Teams bronze (Anthony Plange-Korndorfer, 
Sam Connolly, Thomas Dreverman, Elliot Kane) 

Marc Dickson (left) and Hayden Ferguson were overall winners of the WA 
Open Water Swimming Series U15 and U18 age groups respectively 
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Ski Captain Report 
Jon Standing 

T 

he 2021-22 season was a quiet one for Skis. Winter training was 
reasonably well attended by a group of Masters paddlers and 

some Youth paddlers. However, numbers did tail off over the 
season. 

The good news story for the ski group was the excellent 
progression of young Riley Job, who was the most regular paddler 
at Saturday morning training. Over the course of the winter and 
summer programs, he has mastered paddling a ski in waves, 
battling at the cans and he can now jump start off the beach. He is 
looking an outstanding prospect for when he hits U/17’s in a year or 
two. 

During the season we had the opportunity to run a Ski Orientation 
morning with the Youth group and I was impressed by the skills 
shown by some of these kids. I look forward to seeing them at ski 
training someday soon. 

Competitively, at Masters States we had some good performances 
and some bad luck. Sandra Miller earned a 4th place in the 50-54yrs 

Female Ski race and in the 50+ yrs Double Ski race, Sandy and I 
were robbed of what looked like a guaranteed silver by a party 
wave. The 130+yrs Men’s Ski Relay comprising Ian Clarke, Jon 
Standing and Paul Measey won a bronze. At Open States, Eben 
Prinsloo made the final of the U/17 Ski. 

At Club Champs, Ian Clarke made the best of an opportunity (i.e., I 
lost my big toenail the day before) to take out the Open Male Ski 
and Tink Measey won the Female Single Ski. 

The Club has an abundance of good craft to paddle and 
enthusiastic coaches so come on down for a paddle. See you on the 
water. 

Surf Ski Club Champions - Tink Measey and Ian Clarke 

Jon Standing and Sandy Miller competed in the Mixed Double Ski at Masters States 
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Beach Captain Report 

Dorian Moro 

T 

his season, we saw a progression of beach competitors 
adopting a more formalised training program both on and off 

the sand, and representing well at several Carnivals (including 
States.)  

It was encouraging to see our beachies participate in sprint training 
across the week at UWA/McGilvray Oval, on grass as well as on 
sand. Training on grass improves sprint style and efficiency at 
maximum effort, which easily transfers to sand sprints. Special 
mention is due to Angus McLachlan, Joel Moore, Ginger Archer and 
Kinga Hague for showing great improvement this season with their 
combined grass/sand training. 

Fremantle represented well at Carnivals and it was terrific to see the 
blue and yellow caps among a handful of clubs representing. 

At States, we saw some good results in beach events across all age 
groups - 

Nippers and Youth States 

Liam Palmer (U/9 beach sprint, gold; beach flags gold); Georgia 
Baber (U/10 beach sprint, gold; U/10 1 km run silver), Connor Doig 
(U/12 beach flags bronze). 

Senior States 

Eben Prinsloo (U/17 2km run silver), Youth Beach Relay (Finnbar 
Williams, Sam Connolly, Seth Shaw, Lachlan Sofield, silver) 

Masters States 

Finally, a decent medal tally (for 
beach events) for our ever-
competitive Masters. Kinga Hague 
(sprints gold, flags bronze); Katrina 
Measey (sprints bronze, flags bronze) 
Sandra Miller (flags silver), Kinga 
Hague/Katrina Measey/Jette Oksis/
Fiona Carroll (170+ female relay 
bronze). Go the girls ! And, you have to 
lead by example, so yours truly 
managed a couple medals too 
(sprints gold, flags gold). 

Interclub long run series 

The 1 and 2km Run Series continued into its second year with a 
record number of athletes competing in readiness for States and 
Aussies. Thank you to Jack Dowie for managing this event. 
Competitors aged from Under 6’s through to Masters from all over 
the metro area attended three events at Leighton, followed by two 
breakfasts and one social evening; showing great comradery 
between clubs here in WA. We thank Aussie Natural Spring Water 
(Matt Elliott) and Wild Bakery in South Fremantle (Michel Blot) for 
their ongoing generous support for these events. 

Beach Club Championships 

A strong number of sprinters and beach 
flaggers competed well at our Beach Club 
Championships, so we know you are out 
there ! The Club culture demonstrated on 
the beach that day suggested there are 
strong capabilities across the club for 
beach events. If you are keen to compete 
in sprints and flags, let your AGM and Club 
Captain know ! Heats in the Masters for 
sprints showed us that even mums and 
dads can run – well, at least 70m. 

Club Points – Long run 

This season saw the commencement of our Club-wide long run 
points series for Opens and Youth. Congratulations to Helen Smith 
and Finnbar Williams (female and male youth) and Katrina Measey 
and Spencer Cranston (female and male opens) for taking out 
champion points for the season. 

Going forward to Season 2022-23 

Our Club does have a strong beach presence, but that must be 
followed up with dedicated training, if we aim to be strong as a 
competition club. If you want to compete in beach sprints and/or 
beach flags next season, and with Aussies scheduled for Perth in 
2023, training consistently will improve your overall performance 
and get you into the finals. Focus on beach training events, and you 
will be rewarded even if you do surf events !  

Training over this coming winter will involve working on our overall 
core and aerobic skills. On grass. we will run longer sprints (100-

150m, at a comfortable pace) to keep our sprint work ticking over 
and increase our endurance. On sand, we change over to short 
intense sprints and sand shuttles for our core and aerobics. 

In July, we will have a great opportunity for some more practice at 
the Broome Sunset Carnival. 

Come the surf season starting in October, we will focus on shorter, 
sharper and more intense sprint distances 
(30-100 m), and beach flags. The Club Points 
long run will continue for Opens and Youth. 
Keep a watch for our training schedule on 
the club Surf Sports Facebook page.  

I look forward to Fremantle being an even 
stronger contender at beach events across 
all age groups during  States and particularly 
Aussies.  

Beach Sprint Club Champions - Milly Sullivan and Angus McLachlan 

Eben Prinsloo 

Youth Beach Relay (Sam Connolly, Seth Shaw, 
Lachlan Sofield, Finnbar Williams) 
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Surf Boat Captain Report 
Nick Palmer 

A 

 season of achievement and reward for effort. We have new 
rowers, new events, new surf boat and connection with youth 
at Fremantle. 

Highlights of the season 

• Fremantle men’s crew placed second in Albany Craft Challenge. 

• Completed the Gotch4Life 24 Hour charity row, organized by 
Cath and Jay Morgan. 

• Club Ergo Rowing Championship organized by Peter Smith. 

• Our latest surf boat “Happy As” christened by namesake Larry 
Tilbury. Larry, Mike Shaw and Fremantle Ports all contributed to 
the cost of the boat along with our Club. 

• James Currey achieved accreditation as S2 sweep. A well-
deserved result after a winter of learning and training. Our future 
is with new sweeps and youth, so we tick both boxes. 

• Australian Championships North Kirra Queensland - Reserve 
Men Surf Boat Final. Fremantle Fajitas make the final in very 
difficult conditions, finishing fifth. An extremely proud moment 
for our rowing community. 

Competition 

Kwilenas (Reserve Women - Sweep Paul Hardy, Amanda Kaczmarek, 
Fiona Carroll, Freya Walsh, Sandra Miller) 4th in Endurance Race; 6th 
in State Short Course; 6th in State Championships Long Course 
Final; 6th in Trophy Mug Final; silver medal in Masters 160+ Women 
(with Carla Duffridge). 

Breeze (Reserve Women - Sweep Colin Duffield, Carla Duffridge, Jaime 
Stevens, Jordan Kohler, Emma Moir, Jette Oksis) 

Fajitas: (Open Men - Sweep Michael Cameron, Andrew Robson, Pat 
Wilson, Alec Vukovich, Liam Burke) 4th in State Championships Open 
Men Long Course final; 5th in Short Course Final; 5th in Australian 
Championships Reserve Men Final.  

Flying Fish (Reserve Men – Sweep Craig Harding, Jake Silipo, Nick 
Poynton, James Currey, Ethan Shaw) Bronze medal in State 
Championships Long Course Final.  

Fremantle Bears: (U/23 Men – Sweep Darren Miller, Connall Hansford, 
Jackson White, James Barton, Jack Higgins) 4th in State 
Championships U/23 Men Long Course Final.  

Kwilenas 

Breeze 

Fajitas - Reserves men finalists at Aussies 2022 

Flying Fish 

Bears 

GetAGrip 
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GetAGrip (Reserve Men – Colin Duffield, Paul Kohler, James Birkmanis, 
Kyle Hutchison, Javier Melendez) 4th in Endurance Race; 5th in  
Trophy Mug Final (P. Hardy Sweep); 6th in State Championships 
Reserve Men Final. 

HCM (Masters - Sweep Paul Hardy, Nick Palmer, Michael Cameron, 
Dean Davidson, Ken Ringrose) 4th in State Championships 200+ Men. 

Firecrackers (Kate Silipo, Clara Moody, Millie Sales, Jordan Kohler, 
Sophie Adeline) 

Albany Craft Challenge (Sweep Morrie Vaughan, Andrew Robson, 
Liam Burke, James Birkmanis, Paul Kohler) 2nd. 

Handicap Surf Boat  Race 

Five crews competed, with the winning crew made up of: Colin 
Duffield (sweep), Amanda Kaczmarek, Sandra Miller, James 
Birkmanis and Paul Kohler. 

Rowing Ergo Championship 

Peter Smith initiated an innovative program to develop a pathway to 
introduce our youth to Surf Boats. During the season, one night each 
week, Nick Poynton coached our young men and women on the 
rowing ergos. This culminated in a great social event - the Rowing 
Ergo Championship, with divisions for Youth, Open and Masters 
which included many mums and dads of our youth. 

The night concluded with the 2 km King and Queen of the Bay race. 
Queen of the Bay – Freya Walsh, King of the Bay – Alex Vukovich. 

Most Improved Rower 

Kwilenas (Amanda Kaczmarek, Fiona Carroll, Freya Walsh and 
Sandra Miller) impressed with their dedication and commitment to 
training and competition. Their 
enthusiasm and enjoyment of surf 
rowing was evident at carnivals 
leading to increasing success as 
the season progressed. Along the 
way they finished fourth in the State 
Surf Boat Endurance Race, sixth in 
the Trophy Mug Final and made the 
final of both the Open Women 
Short Course and Reserve Women 
Long Course State Championships.  

Boat Person of the Year 

James Currey spent his winter and the 2021-22 season learning the 
art of Surf Boat sweeping. In 
conjunction with this he trained 
and rowed in the Albany Craft 
Challenge, trained and rowed 
with Flying Fish at Carnivals and 
filled in numerous times with 
other crews at training. Always 
available to assist when 
required James has become a 
valuable member of the Surf 
Boat Community. James 
received his S2 Sweep 
accreditation in April this year. 

Officials 

Once again, Greg Whipp and Pete Wyburn have been outstanding. I 
cannot speak highly enough of their long term, ongoing roles as our 
officials at carnivals. 

Supporters 

Thank you to our supporters: 

• Tony Bowers for his wonderful photography. 

• Tracey Irving, Surf Sports Director. 

• Cath Morgan, Surf Sports Manager. 

• Peter Smith for organizing youth rowing and Nick Poynton as 
rowing coach. 

• Tony Silipo our Carnival Day Manager. 

• Kevin Jaques for his boat repairs and maintenance. 

• Alex Bajada has generously committed to fully fund our next 
surf boat which is expected for the 2022-23 season. 

With the right culture, equipment and support Fremantle Surf Boats 
is on an upward trend of improvement. Seeing our rowers on the 
national stage at the Aussies was thrilling and very rewarding for 
me as Surf Boat Captain. Sweep Michael Cameron brings years of 
surf experience and knowledge to our club which he shares freely. 
Congratulations are richly deserved for Michael, Andrew Robson, 
Pat Wilson, Alex Vukovich and Liam Burke. 

HCM Masters 

Firecrackers 

Youth competitors in the Ergo Rowing Championship        King and Queen of the Bay (Alec Vukovich & Freya Walsh)  

Kwilenas 

James Currey (centre) with Tracey 
Irving and Nick Palmer 
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Masters Sports Officer Report 

Fi Carroll 

I t has been another successful year for the Fremantle Masters ! 

My fellow Masters were very excited this year, when it was 
announced that the State Masters Championships was going to be 
held at Trigg Beach and we might actually have some waves to 
catch!  We only had a small Masters team this year representing 
Fremantle but we had some great successes in both the beach and 
water events.  It was great to have Kinga Hague, Katrina (Tink) and 
Paul  Measey compete as Masters for the first time and have such a 
great day. 

Gold medals were won by Kinga Hague in the Beach Sprint, Jette 
Oksis and Tracey Shaw in the Surf Race, Fi Carroll in the Surf Race 
and Board Race, Dorian Moro in the Beach Sprint and Flags, and 
Brad Ravenscroft in the Surf Race and Ironman. Outstanding work, 
guys ! Other medallists included Sandy Miller, Tink Measey, Ian 
Clarke, Jon Standing, Paul Measey and Ian McLachlan. 

Our Masters female surf boat crew had a wonderful race at 
Scarborough and came away with a silver medal.  They have now 
have a goal set for next year to go one better and bring home the 
GOLD!   

We are also very excited to know that, although Aussies went back 
to Queensland this year because of WA’s closed borders, it will be 
back on our shores in 2023.  It’s time to set some achievable goals 
for the 2022-23 surf sports season! 

A big thank you to our valued coaches, Matt, Jon, Jack and Dorian for 
keeping us fit and motivated once again.  As I say every year, the 
generosity of your time, to coach on a voluntary basis, is a true 
reflection of your character and commitment to our Club.  Without 
you, we couldn’t achieve the success that we do .   

It has been another season of friendship, camaraderie and great 
memories. As we reflect on our successes, achievements, and 
setbacks, let’s use these as a driving force for next season.  There is 
so much to look forward to! 

“Together We’re Stronger” 

Kinga Hague (left) and Dorian Moro - beach golds ! 

Jette Oksis fought for gold in the 40-44 Surf Race 

‘Tink’ Measey pick up one silver and five bronze medals - in her first States ! Fi Carroll on her way to gold in the 44-49 Board Race 
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IRB Captains Report 

Elisabeth Pitts & Lawson Mills   

T 

he IRB racing world has been increasing in size 
over the last few years, and has now become 

extremely competitive in Western Australia with many 
clubs dedicated to improving the sport. The Fremantle 
IRB leadership team has been focused on youth 
development, and as a result we have a very young 
team. Our aim is to continue to welcome new 
members whilst still exhibiting a high level of skill in 
both competition and patrol environments. 

The 2021-22 IRB season has been an interesting year. 
We have a very young and exciting team that has a lot 
of potential ! We are so proud of how far our team has 
come in regard to skill development and technique. 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank our 
Head Coach, John Summers. Without his support and 
guidance, we wouldn’t be half the team we are today. 
John has played a huge part in skill development, 
maintenance and repairs of our craft and equipment. I 
would also like to thank my Co-captain of the last two 
seasons, Lawson Mills. His hard work and dedication to excellence 
has helped to propel the team forward in the right direction.  

IRB is about so much more than competition. Our crew and driver 
courses allow participants to gain the skills to perform rescues safely 
and efficiently. Thank you to our amazing trainers, Dylan Ewart and 
Jake Silipo, for continuing to give up their time to ensure more 
patrolling members at Fremantle are able to gain the skills and 
techniques to operate an IRB. 

Our IRB drivers and crews make up an essential part our patrol 
teams and ensure ongoing safety of beachgoers. They also give up 
their time to provide water safety at carnivals to allow other 
disciplines to compete. I would like to thank everyone who has 
volunteered their time to allow these competitions to run smoothly 
and safely.  

The IRB Person of the Year award is presented annually to a member 
of the Fremantle IRB Team for extraordinary contribution to the sport 

in a number of areas. The award honours an IRB person who 
embodies commitment and dedication to the team through racing, 
patrols, water safety and education.  Our IRB person of the year this 
season is Millie Sales. Millie has been involved in the racing team for 
a number of years. She is dedicated to training and has represented 
Fremantle in a number of competitions as a patient and crew person. 
Millie might be best described as a bit of an underdog or a quiet 
achiever - she is the person who always volunteers for extra water 
safety and wants to be in the boat right until the end of the training 
session. Millie is an excellent role model for our younger up and 
coming team members.   

Massive thank you to our Team Manager, Mike Shaw, who whips us 
in to shape each weekend, reminds us of the rules and helps to 
better the team. Without his help we would be lost when it comes to 
can setting and competition. I would like to also acknowledge our 
dedicated officials - Tracey Irving, Tracey Shaw and Melvin Nunes. 
Put simply, without our officials we wouldn’t be able to compete. 
Special thanks to Karen Carmody and Tony Silipo for going above 
and beyond to assist with providing food post-training or mid 
carnival.  And a big shout-out to Tony Bowers for capturing all our 
cool tricks and big wave hits for posterity. 

Finally, we would like to say thank you to our Club sponsors for your 
continued support over the season. 

Gold medal winners in the Female Tube Race 

Maddie Shaw (left), Jake Silipo and Liz Pitts 

The Mixed Relay team picked up a silver medal 

IRB Person of the Year - Millie Sales, receiving the trophy from Jake Silipo 
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Juniors Surf Sports Report 

Richard Dreverman 

I  joined as Junior Surf Sports coordinator this year, with the overall 
goal of seeing more blue and yellow caps on the beach at local, 

country and state level competitions.  We have incredible kids at our 
Club and they just needed a little push to realise how good they are. 

To support this, we derived the following three objectives for the 
nippers and one for the parents: 

• Expose kids to competition through intra-club development 
carnivals ; 

• Engage more kids in the inter-club competition opportunities ; 

• Promote board training with wave skills, swim training and beach 
training at the club ; 

• Draw on the wealth of knowledge within the club to build 
competence in Nipper parents for coaching, official duties, IRB and 
water safety to support the first three objectives. 

I am pleased to say when I look back in a season of high activity that 
we definitely moved forward against those objectives. All carnivals 
were promoted, as were our own development carnivals and the 
Club Championships. 

We promoted and increased the 
number of Nippers in the carnivals, 
since SLSWA data shows a strong 
link between children who 
compete at carnivals to those who 
stay on and become patrol 
members in years to come. This is 
the reason why our Club invests in 
this aspect of our kids’ 
development. 

The Little Nippers (U/8’s and 
U/9’s) program kicked off this year 
with local and regional carnivals 
and a State competition in 
February at Sorrento Beach. This 
program was well received, and a 
big thanks to Dean Gregorevic 
who coordinated the State events 
for Fremantle. 

Beach and board training was 
again provided by Jack Dowie and 

Peter ‘Pedro’ Smith. What Pedro 
was able to achieve with an 
unimaginable level of enthusiasm 

and commitment was no doubt a contributing factor to the Club’s 
success in competition.  Pedro consistently saw very good numbers 
at these frequent and varied sessions, and his commitment to the 
development of our Nippers 
should not go unmentioned. 

So how did we go? Well, we 
should start at the top and 
recognise our own U/10 Age 
Champion - congratulations to 
Georgia Baber, who was the 
highest performing female 
athlete in her age group at the 
2022 SunSmart WA Nipper Surf 
Lifesaving Championships. 
Superb effort, Georgia! 

Congratulations also go to our 
awesome team of nippers who 
competed at that event. Surf 
conditions were very tough, 
and we are incredibly proud of 
every single one of you. For 
some, just making it around the 
course was a massive 
achievement;  for others that at 
the last minute joined a team 
they realised success 
recognised with medals. We 

had many nippers reach finals and score points for the club helping 
us to finish in seventh position. 

Congratulations to all our medallists from the State Championships - 
Georgia, Nyila, Molly, Arianna, Ella, Maggie, Torah, Olivia, Savannah, 
Sienna, Flynn, Connor, Jayden, Austin, Aramis, Niamh, Charmaine, 
Elizabeth, Matilda, Sol, and Noah. The medal listing is in the rear of 
this report. 

Huge thanks to our AGM’s (who wrangle the kids and push them to 
become a better version of themselves), coaches, water safety, 
officials and parents for helping out all weekend and throughout the 
season. 

Of course, the path this year has been strongly supported by an 
active parent group of water safety and officials, of which some are 
stepping up to start to manage arenas as well. Fremantle always 
meets its requirements at carnivals but, of course, we can do better. 
It is an important part of demonstration of a strong club, but we 
cannot rest on our work done to date and we must all continue build 
competency in our Nipper parent group. 

To the AGM manager, Kirsty Moore, a huge thanks for helping me 
navigate the groups on a weekly basis at our development carnivals 
and at the competitions.  Kirsty shares the passion for surf sports and 
was instrumental in supporting the delivery of our objectives 
promoting Nippers at carnivals.  

Finally, to the Nippers themselves, thank you for demonstrating the 
Fremantle spirit of sportsmanship on the field, shaking that next 
club’s hand straight after the event, and thanking the officials. I get 
feedback - it is noticed; it is contagious. We are in awe of your 
bravery, team spirit and resilience. 

As we transition out of surf sports into the winter, it is the best time to 
build that base fitness at the swimming pool. It gives you a great 
head start in all other sports that you try, and with that, confidence. 
We hope to see you at the Pool Rescue Championships mid-year 
supported by Tracey Shaw. 

Georgia Baber 

Liam Palmer - Little Nipper gold in 
U/9 flags and sprints 

Our U/10 Surf Teams gold medal winners - Georgia Baber, Nyila Ballal, 
Arianna Steadman, Molly Smith 

Our U/11 Surf Teams also takes gold - Ella Cameron, Olivia Woodhead, 
Torah Howe, Maggie Gregorevic 
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Audited Financial Report 
 

Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Directors Report 

Your directors submit the financial report of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc for the year ended 31 March 2022. 
 

Board members 

 

The names of board members throughout the year and at the date of this report are: 
 

 Jack Dowie - President 
 Tracey Irving - Director of Surf Sports 

 Jette Oksis – Director of Administration 

 Liam Burke – Director of Lifesaving & Education 

 Marcin Gabriel – Director of Development 
 Henny Smith – Director of Finance 

 Jay Morgan – Club Captain 

 

Principal activities 

 

The principal activities of the association during the financial year were to provide surf lifesaving training and services to members and 
the community. 
 

Significant changes 

 

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the period. 
 

Operating result 
 

The profit from ordinary activities amounted to $150,304 (2020 - $123,122). 
 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors. 
 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

For the Year ended 31 March 2022 

  2022 2021 

  $ $ 

Income 

Sales – bar, canteen & uniform shop  89,644 80,253 

Membership fees  232,988 225,900 

Donations  76,995 40,281 

Education  9,952 17,357 

Sponsorship  94,048 71,748 

Grants received  33,000 5,000 

Government Stimulus  - 49,000 

Life saving services  2,857 9,874 

Interest received  785 1,873 

Competition   11,718 12,219 

Camp fees  13,715 13,641 

Club rental & hire income  46,478 24,882 

Sub lease expense recoupment  25,503 12,206 

Subsidies income  - 800 

Social & Fundraising  26,737 21,821 

Prepaid building lease income  141,914 141,914 

Sundry  1,768 11,791 

  808,102 740,560 

 

Expenses 

COGS – Bar, canteen, uniform shop  79,988 69,836 

Administration & payroll expenses  146,922 145,410 

Lifesaving & Education expenses  13,729 17,785 

Juniors & Youth expenses  8,306 12,400 

Vehicle and equipment expenses  33,965 34,614 

Competition expenses  39,918 31,264 

Direct costs membership fees  25,946 25,189 

Depreciation - building  93,520 93,520 

Depreciation - other  46,966 36,514 

Social & fundraising & marketing expenses  16,041 19,210 

Building related expenses  150,666 122,721 

Premises hire expenses  1,831 1,145 

Other expenses  - 7,830 

Total expenses  657,798 617,438 

Surplus for the year  150,304 123,122 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at 31 March 2022 

 Note 2022 2021 

  $ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash & cash equivalents 3 570,169 431,484 

Accounts receivables 4 35,495 58,510 

Inventories 5 90,440 51,083 

Other receivables 6 31,445 10,409 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  727,549 551,486 

 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant & equipment 7 2,994,967 3,108,377 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  2,994,967 3,108,377 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,722,516 3,659,863 

 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other payables 8 120,903 62,452 

Employee provisions 9 17,535 17,596 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  138,438 80,048 

 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Other liabilities 10 1,135,311 1,277,225 

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,135,311 1,277,225 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,273,749 1,357,273 

NET ASSETS  2,448,767 2,302,590 

 

MEMBERS’ FUNDS 

Retained surplus 11 2,448,767 2,302,590 

TOTAL MEMBERS’ FUNDS  2,448,767 2,302,590 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

As at 31 March 2022 

  Retained 

  Surplus Total 

  $ $ 

฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀฀Balance at 1 April 2020  2,179,468 2,179,468 

Surplus for year  123,122 123,122 

Balance at 31 March 2021  2,302,590 2,302,590 

  ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

Balance at 1 April 2021  2,302,590 2,302,590 

Surplus for year  150,304 150,304 

Prior year adjustment  (4,127) (4,127) 

Balance at 31 March 2022  2,448,767 2,448,767 

Statement of Cash Flows 

As at 31 March 2022 

  2022 2021 

  $ $ 

Cash from operating activities    

Receipts from members, sponsors and customers  688,418 579,808 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (519,315) (432,357) 

Interest received  785 1,873 

Net cash provided by operating activities  165,761 149,324 

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Net purchase of plant & equipment  (27,076) (68,423) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (27,076) (68,423) 

 

Net cash (decrease) in cash held  138,685 80,901 

Cash at beginning of financial year  431,484 350,583 

Cash at end of financial year  570,169 431,484 

  ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Twelve Months Ended 31 March 2021 

Note 1: Statement of significant accounting policies 

The report, except for the cash flow information, has been prepared on an accruals basis in that it accounts for debtors, creditors, 
employee provisions and prepaid building lease income, but has not included other accruals and prepayments in order to be consistent 
with year accounting treatment.. The report is based on historic costs and does not take into account changing money values, or except 
where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets. 

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in 
the preparation of this financial report. 

(a) Income tax 

No provision for income tax has been raised as the association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Property, plant and equipment 

Property 

Freehold land and buildings are measured at their fair value (being the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction), based on periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external 
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.  

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to a revaluation surplus in equity. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against fair value reserves directly in equity. Decreases 
that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income.  

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis.  

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the committee to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable 
amount of those assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received 
from the assets’ employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have not been discounted to their present 
values determining recovering amounts. 

 Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding land and buildings, are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the 
association commencing from the time the asset was held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the 
shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease of the estimated useful lives of the improvements.  

(c) Cash on hand 

Cash on hand included cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. 

(d) Accounts receivable and other debtors 

Accounts receivable and other debtors includes amounts due from customers. Receivable expected to be collected within 12 
months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivable are classified as non-current assets. 

(e) Revenue and other income 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the 
instrument.   

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of receipt. 

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to receive the contribution, 
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. 

Cash receipts are recognised as income when they are deposited into the bank account 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 

(f) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australia Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST 
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or 
payables in the assets and liabilities statement. 

(g) Accounts payable and other payables 

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services 
received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the 
amounts normally paid within 30 days or recognition of the liability. ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Twelve Months Ended 31 March 2021 

Note 1 : Statement of significant accounting policies continued 

(h) Employee provisions 

Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of 
the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled 

(i) Leases 

Leases of PPE, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset (but not the legal ownership) 
are transferred to the association, are classified as finance leases. 

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are 
allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for that period 

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term. Lease 
payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred 

(j) Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the committee reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out 
on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and 
value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised 
in the income and expenditure statement 

(k) Inventories on hand 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Twelve Months Ended 31 March 2022 

  2022 2021 

  $ $ 

Note 3 : Cash at Bank 

Cheque account  250,044 112,936 

Cash management account  59,196 59,248 

Credit card account  836 (16) 
Prime rescue account  5,153 5,153 

Term deposit – Building fund  164,477 164,266 

Term deposit – General reserves  90,223 89,657 

Cash floats  240 240 

  570,169 431,484 

Note 4 : Accounts receivables & other debtors 

Trade debtors  35,495 58,510 

  35,495 58,510 

Note 5 : Inventories 

Bar  2,903 2,212 

Canteen  154 154 

Uniform Shop  85,483 46,317 

FMSLSC number plates  1,900 2,400 

  90,440 51,083 

Note 6 : Other receivables 

GST refund due  8,928 6,490 

Prepayments  14,517 3,919 

Accrued income  8,000 - 

  31,445 10,409 

 

Note 7 : Property, plant & equipment 

Building at cost  3,740,822 3,740,822 

Less accumulated depreciation  934,045 840,525 

  2,806,777 2,900,297 

Plant & equipment at cost  739,106 719,177 

Less accumulated depreciation  550,916 511,097 

  188,190 208,080 

Total property, plant and equipment  2,994,967 3,108,377 

 

a) Movements in carrying amounts 

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current 
financial year. 

 Buildings Plant & Motor Total 
  equipment vehicle 

 $ $ $ $ 

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,900,297 208,080 - 3,108,377 

Additions - 27,242 - 27,242 

Disposal - (166) - (166) 
Depreciation expense (93,520) (46,966) - (140,486) 

 2,806,777 188,190 - 2,994,967 
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Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Twelve Months Ended 31 March 2022 

  2022 2021 

  $ $ 

Note 8 : Accounts payable and other creditors 

Trade creditors  115,208 55,605 

PAYGW  3,966 2,720 

Superannuation payable  1,446 3,844 

Locker bonds  283 283 

  120,903 62,452 

 

Note 9 : Employee provisions 

Employee leave provisions  17,535 17,596 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

Note 10 : Other liabilities 

Building lease prepayment  2,554,451 2,554,451 

Less accumulated amortisation of lease prepayment  1,419,140 1,277,226 

Total lease liability  1,135,311 1,277,225 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

The building lease prepayment relates to the building cost funded by the builder at the time of construction of the club building. In 
exchange the builder was granted a twenty-year lease entitlement on the upstairs café section of the building. The prepayment of 
building lease is being amortised over eighteen years i.e the period from the time construction was completed to the end of the lease 
period (2030). 

Note 11 : Retained Surplus 

Surplus at the beginning of the financial year  2,302,590 2,179,468 

Current year surplus (deficit)  150,304 123,122 

Prior year adjustment  (4,127) - 

Retained surplus at the end of the financial year  2,448,767 2,302,590 

 

Note 12 : Cash flow information 

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities with 

Net current year surplus  150,304 123,122 

Non cash flows in current year surplus 

Depreciation   140,486 130,034 

Amortisation of prepaid building lease  (141,914) (141,914) 

Changes in assets and liabilities  

(Increase) / decrease in accounts & other receivable  1,979 (16,965) 
(Increase) / decrease in inventory  (39,357) 15,722 

Increase / (decrease) in accounts payable  58,451 36,278 

Increase / (decrease) in employee provisions  (61) 3,047 

Prior year adjustment  (4,127) -  

Net cash flow from operating activities  165,761 149,324 

 ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ ฀฀฀฀฀฀฀ 

฀฀฀฀฀฀ 
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In accordance with a resolution of the board of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc, the members of the board declare that the financial 
statements as set out on pages I to 12 : 

1. Present a true and fair view of the financial position of Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc as at 31 March 2022 and its performance 
for the year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note I to the financial report and the 
requirements of the Associations Incorporations Act Western Australia. 

2. At the date of this statement that are reasonable grounds to believe that Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due, 

This statement is signed for and on behalf of the board by: 

Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club Inc 

ABN 34 048 412 533 

Directors Statement 
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National and State Medals 2021-2022 

Junior State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
 

U/12 F 100m Obstacles Gold Alyssa Peake 

U/12 F 100m Patient Tow Fins Silver Alyssa Peake, Matilda Power 
U/12 F 50m Brick Carry Bronze Matilda Power 
U/12 F 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Evie Hussey 

    Bronze Alyssa Peake 

U12/13 F 4x50m Obstacle Rly Bronze Evie Hussey, Hannah Morkel,   
     Alyssa Peake, Matilda Power 
 

Junior State Championships (Scarboro) 
 

U/10 F Surf Teams  Gold Arianna Steadman, Georgia  
     Baber, Molly Smith, 
     Nyila Ballal  

U/11 F Surf Teams  Gold Ella Cameron, Maggie   
     Gregorevic, Olivia Woodhead, 
     Torah Howe  

U/10 F Beach Sprint  Gold Georgia Baber    

U/10 F Surf Race  Gold Georgia Baber  
U/11 F Cameron Relay  Silver Maggie Gregorevic, Savannah 

     Blackwood, Sienna Galvao,  
     Torah Howe  

U/10 F 1 KM Run  Silver Georgia Baber    

U/10 M Surf Race  Silver Flynn Dreverman   

U/11 F Surf Race  Silver Torah Howe    

U/10 M Surf Teams  Bronze Austin Sutherland, Flynn  
     Dreverman, Noah Robert, 
     Sol Homes  

U/13 F Surf Teams  Bronze Charmaine Ferguson, 
     Elizabeth Kane, Matilda Power, 
     Niamh Dickson  

U/10 M Cameron Relay Bronze Aramis Landrigan, Henry  
     Braddock, Noah Robert, 
     Sol Homes, Xander Moore 

U/11 Ironwoman  Bronze Maggie Gregorevic 

U/12 M Beach Flags  Bronze Connor Doig    

 

Little Nipper State Championships 

 

U/9 Beach Sprint  Gold Liam Palmer 
U/9 Beach Flags  Gold Liam Palmer 
 

Senior State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
 

Open F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Bronze Madelline Shaw 

Open F 4x50m Obstacle Rly Gold Nami Dickson, Jette Oksis,   
     Tracey Shaw, Madelline Shaw 

Open F 50m Manikin Carry Gold Madelline Shaw 

U/14 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Silver Anthony Plange-Korndorfer 
U/14 M 200m Obstacles Bronze Anthony Plange-Korndorfer 
U/14 M 50m Freestyle Fins Silver Anthony Plange-Korndorfer 
U/17 M 100m Mkin Carry Fins Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 100m Mkin Tow Fins Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 100m Rescue Medley Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 200m Obstacles Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 200m Super Lifesaver Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 50m Freestyle Fins Gold Kelton Rothnie 

U/17 M 50m Manikin Carry Gold Kelton Rothnie 

 

 

Senior State Championships (Scarboro) 
 

U/17 M 2km Beach Run Silver Eben Prinsloo 

U/17 M Surf Teams  Silver Eben Prinsloo, Hayden 

     Ferguson, Jonah Whitby, 
     Marcus Dalley 

U/17 Mixed 5 Person R&R Silver Aisling Tyndall, Ashleigh 

     Farrell, Claire Dean, Kate  
     Creasy, Sophie Farrell 
Youth M Beach Relay  Silver Finnbar Williams, Lachlan  
     Sofield, Samson Connolly,  
     Seth Shaw 

Open F 5 Person R&R  Bronze Aisling Tyndall, Ashleigh 

     Farrell, Claire Dean, Kate  
     Creasy, Sophie Farrell 
Open M Reserve Surf Boat Bronze Flying Fish (Craig Harding,  
     Ethan Shaw, Jake Silipo,  
     James Currey, Nicholas  
     Poynton) 

U/15 M Ironman  Bronze Thomas Dreverman 

U/17 M Ironman  Bronze Eben Prinsloo 

U/17 M Surf Race  Bronze Eben Prinsloo 

Youth M Surf Teams  Bronze Anthony Plange-Korndorfer,  
     Elliot Kane, Samson Connolly,  
     Thomas Dreverman 

 

Masters State Pool Rescue Championships (HBF Stadium) 
 

40+ F 100m Mkin Carry Fins Gold Tracey Shaw 

40+ F 100m Mkin Tow Fins Silver Tracey Shaw 

40+ F 200m Obstacles  Silver Tracey Shaw 

    Bronze Jette Oksis 

40+ F 50m Freestyle Fins Bronze Tracey Shaw 

40+ F 50m Manikin Carry Bronze Tracey Shaw 

40+ F Line Throw  Silver Jette Oksis, Tracey Shaw 

 

 

Masters State Championships (Trigg island) 
 

40-44 F Beach Sprint  Gold Kinga Hague 

40-44 F Surf Race  Gold Jette Oksis 

45-49 F Board Race  Gold Fiona Carroll 
45-49 F Surf Race  Gold Fiona Carroll 
50-54 M Beach Flags  Gold Dorian Moro 

50-54 M Beach Sprint  Gold Dorian Moro 

50-54 M Ironman  Gold Brad Ravenscroft 
50-54 M Surf Race  Gold Brad Ravenscroft 
55-59 F Surf Race  Gold Tracey Shaw 

130+ F Surf Teams  Silver Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis,  
     Tracey Shaw 

150+ F Taplin Relay  Silver Fiona Carroll, Sandra Miller,  
     Tracey Shaw 

160 Min F Surf Boat  Silver Kwilenas (Amanda Kaczmarek, 
     Carol Duffield, Fiona Carroll,  
     Paul Hardy) 
40-44 F Board Race  Silver Jette Oksis 

45-49 F Board Race  Silver Katrina Measey 

45-49 F Board Rescue  Silver Fiona Carroll, Tracey Shaw 

50-54 F Beach Flags  Silver Sandra Miller 
55-59 F Board Race  Silver Tracey Shaw 

130+ M Single Ski Relay Bronze Ian Clarke, Jonathan Standing, 
     Paul Measey 

170+ F Beach Relay  Bronze Fiona Carroll, Jette Oksis,  
     Katrina Measey, Kinga Hague 

40-44 F Beach Flags  Bronze Kinga Hague 

40-44 M Ironman  Bronze Ian Clarke 

45-49 F Beach Flags  Bronze Katrina Measey 

45-49 F Beach Sprint  Bronze Katrina Measey 

45-49 F Ironwoman  Bronze Katrina Measey 

45-49 F Single Ski  Bronze Katrina Measey 

50-54 M Ironman  Bronze Ian McLachlan 

 

State IRB Championships (Mullaloo) 
 

Female Tube   Gold Whirlwinds (Liz Pitts, 
     Maddie Shaw, Jake Silipo) 
Female Teams   Bronze Perfect Storm (Liz Pitts, 
     Maddie Shaw, Clara Moody,  
     Millie Sales, Ethan Shaw, 
     Luke de Laeter) 
Mixed Relay   Silver Clara Moody, Elisabeth Pitts,  
     Ethan Shaw, Isabella Wilson,  
     Jack Hadley, Jake Silipo, 
     James Currey, Kate Silipo,  
     Kieren Smith, Lawson Mills, 
     Luke de Laeter, Madelline  
     Shaw, Millie Sales, Nicholas  
     Poynton, Olivia Power 
 

State Endurance Championships (Sorrento) 
 

35+ F 1.5km Beach run Silver Tink Measey 

U/17 M 2km Swim Bronze  Hayden Feguson 

U/14 M 3km Beach run Gold Rhys Cameron 

U/15 M 3km beach run Gold Alexander Merry 

45+ F 3.5km Board Silver Tink Measey 
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Patrol & Water Safety Hours 2021-2022 

Jessica Simpson  57 4 

Liam Burke  56.5 0 

Jake Silipo  55.75 0 

Jason Morgan  55.5 4 

Luke de Laeter  52 0 

Catherine Morgan  48 4 

Sean Dickson  46.5 4 

Michael Shaw  42.5 0 

Javier Mogollon  40.5 0 

Lawson Mills  39 0 

Clara Moody  38.5 0 

Kate Burke  38 4 

Kieren Smith  35.5 0 

Ethan Shaw  34.5 0 

Annabelle Standing 32.5 0 

Dylan Ewart  32.5 0 

Jack Dowie  32.5 0 

Matthew Housham 32.5 0 

Claire Dean  32 0 

Millie Sales  32 0 

Spencer Cranston  32 4 

Ian McLachlan  31.5 26 

Timothy Macknay  30.5 4 

Caitlin Zappelli  30 6 

Claire Ryan  29.5 0 

James Currey  29.5 4 

Mikaela Spires  29.5 0 

Jack Hadley  29 2 

Ella Douglas  28.5 0 

Hudson Whiting  28.5 0 

Dean Davidson  28 0 

Ella Thompson  28 2 

Estela Taranto  28 8 

Eva Davidson  28 0 

Ian Jackson  28 0 

Kenneth Ringrose  28 0 

Sandra Miller  28 0 

Zoe Davidson  28 0 

Zoe Jaques  28 0 

Andrew Robson  27.5 0 

Nicholas Poynton  27.5 4 

Lily Jones  27 14 

Kate Silipo  26.5 0 

Amanda Kaczmarek 26.02 0 

Elaine Palmer  26 4 

James Hickey  25.75 6 

Alexander Winner  25.25 0 

Madison Hadley  25 6 

Matthew Coleman  25 0 

Sophie Craddock  25 0 

Amber Kinnane  24.75 0 

Kenneth Summers 24.75 4 

Ian Clarke  24.5 30 

Kelly Hiles  24.5 0 

Alison Webb  24 0 

Andrew Pitchford  24 0 

Angus McLachlan  24 2 

Callum Wilkinson  24 0 

Cameron Currey  24 32 

Cheyne Cameron  24 28 

Daniel Browning  24 0 

Hayden Ferguson  24 4 

Hayley Wallwork  24 0 

Ian Thompson  24 8 

James Birkmanis  24 4 

Jessica Leng  24 0 

Kalani Chong Sue  24 0 

Lilly Rodgers  24 2 

Mal Currey  24 0 

Michael Dean  24 34 

Sally Clark  24 2 

Thomas Dreverman 24 0 

Tracey Shaw  24 0 

Alec Vukovich  23 0 

Ava Green  23 10 

Emma Moir  23 2 

Jonah Whitby  22.5 2 

David Carbon  22 0 

Olivia Fuller  22 4 

Paul Kohler  22 0 

Carly Pizzuto  21 0 

Emma Watson  21 0 

Luke Rodman  21 0 

Rob Blascetta  21 36 

Nicholas Wilson  20.5 0 

April Lea   20 0 

Argyle Sivewright  20 0 

Chelsea Stockden  20 2 

Cooper Whiting  20 0 

Dave Creasy  20 34 

Dorian Moro  20 0 

Elijah Stockden  20 0 

Gabrielle Netto  20 0 

Henrietta Smith  20 0 

Jemma Passmore  20 0 

Jette Oksis  20 0 

Jonathan Standing 20 0 

Kate Creasy  20 2 

Kate Purcell  20 0 

Katrina Measey  20 10 

Liloue Farish-Luhan 20 2 

Mark Sampson  20 0 

Meg de Laeter  20 0 

Nick Lonie  20 4 

Olivia Power  20 0 

Penny Fegan  20 0 

Pierce Gavin  20 0 

Raymond Webb  20 0 

Seth Shaw  20 0 

Stephanie Price  20 0 

Gabrielle Gibbons  19.75 2 

Callum Cleave  18.5 2 

Elliot Kane  18        1.25 

Genevieve McLachlan  18 4 

Amelie Prinsloo  17.5 0 

Jordan Dowie  17 0 

Paul Measey  17 4 

Brett Douglas  16.5 0 

Roy Woodcock  16.5 0 

Aimee Moody  16 2 

Andy McIntyre  16 0 

Anthony Plange-Korndorfer  
   16 8 

Brad Ravenscroft  16 0 

Byron Johnstone  16 0 

Calder Lea  16 2 

Cameron Ross  16 0 

Chris Clark  16 0 

Darryl Salisbury  16 0 

Eben Prinsloo  16 4 

Etienne Prinsloo  16 26 

Fiona Carroll  16 8 

Harry Cox  16 0 

Isabella Wilson  16 0 

Jack Della-Marta  16 0 

Jake Gooding  16 30 

Jason Dean  16 30 

Jason Johansson  16 0 

Jessica Gooding  16 2 

Jessica Stackhouse 16 26 

Joseph Coleman  16 0 

Katherine Grayson  16 0 

Kinga Hague  16 6 

Kirsti Gorringe  16 0 

Leah Purcell  16 42 

Lily Stackhouse  16 22 

Marc Follett  16 0 

Marcus Dalley  16 0 

Milan Bazley  16 0 

Monique D'Amato  16 0 

Neil Dickson  16 30 

Nicholas Davidson  16 0 

Nick Klvana-Hooper 16 0 

Patric Wilson  16 0 

Rhys Cameron  16 2 

Ruby Fegan  16 0 

Ruby Ryan  16 0 

Ruby Vyse  16 0 

Sienna Robinson  16 28 

Solomon Fegan  16 2 

Sophie Farrell  16 2 

Thomas Reid  16 0 

Ava Forrest  15.75 0 

Milly Sullivan  15.75 0 

Ashleigh Farrell  15.5 2 

Sarah McKay  15.25 22 

Maia Ravenscroft  15.17 20 

Joe Elliott-Tideman 15 0 

Lucia Bradshaw-Pini 14.5 0 

Xavier Bradshaw-Pini 14.5 0 

Shenae Baker  14.25 0 

Tayla Reynolds  14.25 0 

Isabel Auld  14 28 

Scott Sheridan  13 34 

Amelia Bradshaw-Pini 12.5 0 

Sophia Morkel  12.5 16 

Kate Collins  12.25 0 

Alisha Morgan  12 0 

Amelia Taranto  12 8 

Amelie Croci  12 26 

Bridie Duffy  12 2 

Caoimhe Duffy  12 30 

Coco McGrath  12 30 

Darcy Pavlovich  12 0 

David Moody  12 30 

Douglas Shannon  12 0 

Hitesh Madan  12 28 

Holly Baker  12 0 

Jay Elliott-Tideman 12 26 

Jordan Kohler  12 0 

Lachlan Sofield  12 0 

Lorena D'Amato  12 0 

Luke Lester  12 0 

Monique Morgan  12 0 

Paul Grayson  12 0 

Prideaux Joyce  12 0 

Ruby Evans  12 30 

Samson Connolly  12 2 

Thomas Arbery  12 10 

James Ravenscroft 11 4 

Allegra Piaccia  10.5 32 

Brooklyn Barr  10.5 0 

Charlotte Gibbons  10.25 0 

Hamish Ravenscroft 10.17 0 

Madelline Shaw  10 4 

Roklan Braddock  10 10 

Mark Woodcock  9.5 0 

Helen Smith  9 6 

Matthew Summers 9 0 

Max Bartolomei  9 0 

Amy Doig  8.5 2 

Elisabeth Pitts  8.5 0 

Aklie Braddock  8 4 

Alec Davison  8 0 

Alexis Maliphant  8 0 

Anthony Parissis  8 0 

Bianca Valencia  8 0 

Blake Pilgrim  8 0 

Bridget Gavin  8 8 

Brodie Gooding  8 4 

Caroline Watson  8 0 

Charlie Groom  8 12 

Charlotte Robinson 8 0 

Ciara Kohler  8 2 

Conall Hansford  8 0 

Darren Miller  8 0 

Delilah Worrall  8 6 

Ellen O'Keeffe  8 2 

Finnbar Williams  8 0 

George McAuslane 8 2 

Ginger Archer  8 4 

Hannah Lea  8 0 

Henry Hickson  8 0 

Jackson White  8 0 

Jaime Stevens  8 4 

Jarrod Black  8 0 

Jasmine Bacich  8 20 

Jesse Barr  8 0 

Jo Anne Johnstone 8 0 

John Hooper  8 2 

Joshua Douglas  8 0 

Julian D'Amato  8 0 

Kelly Aitken-Fox  8 0 

Kevin Christensen  8 0 

Lillyka Trawinski  8 0 

Louise Barton  8 4 

Maeve McKenna  8 0 

Marc Dickson  8 2 

Martin Jackson  8 0 

Michael Dixon  8 0 

Noah O'Hehir  8 2 

Paul Hardy  8 0 

Presley Peppin  8 8 

Rachel Webb  8 28 

Robert Vinci  8 0 

Samantha Carbon  8 0 

Sienna Pass  8 20 

Sophie Adeline  8 8 

Sophie Miller  8 0 

Thea Whitby  8 4 

Lucy Chambers  7 6 

Alexander Merry  6 0 

Amali Pettman  6 2 

Amelia Sucur  6 6 

Emma Bakkers  6 6 

Jack Groom  6 8 

Jack Higgins  6 0 

James Barton  6 0 

John Price  6 0 

Jordan Hayward  6 0 

Matilda Smith  6         10.5 

Maymuna Ballal  6 8 

Poppy Rawlings  6 6 

Lachlan Auld  5.5 0 

Tupou Chong Sue  5.5 0 

Adie McGrath  4 8 

Aisling Tyndall  4 0 

Alex Eddison  4 2 

Ally Sherriff  4 2 

Ally Uppill  4 0 

Alyssa Tyndall  4 8 

Amrit Jessy  4 0 

Angus Dorrian  4 0 

Annie Fulwood  4 0 

Bella Connelly  4 0 

Carys Bowers  4 30 

Cassia Audeyev  4 2 

Christian Pansini  4 0 

Cooper Jackson  4 0 

Eamon Wilkinson  4 0 

Elizabeth Willcox  4 0 

Eva Longstaff  4 6 

Evie Wedge  4 0 

Fernando Riese  4 0 

Freya Walsh  4 0 

Greg Dunn  4 0 

Hannah Lee-Reynolds 4 0 

Isaac Ashe  4 2 

Isabella Allison  4 0 

Jasmine Pix  4 28 

Jason Curedale  4 2 

Jessica Rintoul  4 0 

Jordan Krieser  4 0 

Kristopher Macintosh 4 0 

Kyle Hutchison  4 0 

Lauren Paganoni  4 0 

Liam Purcell  4 6 

Lily Eddison  4 0 

Macie Brennan  4 0 

Madeleine Stockden 4 2 

Marcin Gabriel  4 15 

Marcus Sucur  4 0 

Matt Elliott  4 8 

Maya Nicholls  4 0 

Millie Mullins  4 8 

Monet Miller  4 0 

Philip Chen  4 0 

Robert Atkins  4 2 

Shaw-Kay Chen  4 0 

Sopheira Woodhead 4 0 

Stella Wessels  4 0 

Summer Coster  4 6 

Tanya Dean  4       30.08 

Tracey Irving  4 0 

Ella McNamara-Pitt 2 6 

Joel Moore  2 30 

Jovana Tutulic  2 2 

Nami Dickson  1.75 0 

Lauren Warschauer 1.33 0 

Peter Smith  0 82 

Adam Dees  0 36 

Linda Clark  0 36 

David Townsend  0 34 

Aaron Arbery  0 32 

Gavin Brooks  0 32 

Juan Lopez Petit  0 32 

Adam Connolly  0       30.08 

Kirsty Moore  0 30 

Neil Ferguson  0 30 

Aldi Prinsloo  0 28 

Isla Krieser  0 28 

Maria Mota Echeverria 0 28 

Mathew Pantony  0 28 

Lisa Highman  0 26 

Richard Dreverman 0 26 

Sherief Khorshid  0 26 

Natalie Cameron  0 24 

Libby Gregorevic  0 22 

Carl Young  0 16 

Clinton Haskew-Jones 0 16 

John Skipsey  0 14 

Robyn Crighton  0 12 

Riley Job   0          11.5 

Julie Morgan  0       10.08 

Barny Fraser  0 10 

Carl Dyde  0 10 

Jim Purcell  0 10 

Brendon Findlater  0 8 

Murray Bolton  0 8 

Shane Braddock  0 8 

Alex Prior  0 6 

Danielle Paterson  0 6 

Paul McKiernan  0 6 

Andrew Creasy  0 4 

Chloe Gaspar  0 4 

Deirdre Purcell  0 4 

Simon Parker  0 4 

Alison Auld  0 2 

Bronson Gherardi  0 2 

Chris Cleave  0 2 

Ella Gaspar  0 2 

Jason Hirst  0 2 

Mathew Voysey  0 2 

Michele Piaccia  0 2 

Nick Lowe  0 2 

Sienna Motton  0 2 

Tim Matuszyk  0 2 

Vaughan Brazier  0 2 

 

Total            5101         2258 
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Lifesaving Awards 2021-2022 

WA Youth Leaders Program Bronze Level  

   

Madison Hadley WA11752035 15/02/2022 

   

10 Year Age Manager Service Certificate  

   

Anthony Bowers WA11491368 20/04/2021 

Neil Ferguson WA11491369 20/04/2021 

   

10 Year National Patrol Service Award  

   

Jason Morgan WA11508991 20/04/2021 

   

5 Year Age Manager Service Certificate  

   

Brian Troy WA11491377 20/04/2021 

Jack Dowie WA11491371 20/04/2021 

Jason Morgan WA11491373 20/04/2021 

Monique Morgan WA11491374 20/04/2021 

Tony Silipo WA11491376 20/04/2021 

Tracey Irving WA11491372 20/04/2021 

   

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 

  

Joseph Wooden WA11681387 8/11/2021 

Sophie Adeline WA11681378 8/11/2021 

Jake Silipo WA11686746 25/10/2021 

Matthew Housham WA11686744 25/10/2021 

Ethan Shaw WA11539158 21/09/2021 

Timothy Gleeson WA11539152 21/09/2021 

Madelline Shaw WA11717764 6/09/2021 

John Price WA11514606 18/08/2021 

Mark Regel WA11514608 18/08/2021 

Michael Shaw WA11514611 18/08/2021 

Peter Hastie WA11514603 18/08/2021 

Leanne Coverley-Brandis WA11712798 9/04/2021 

   

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques [AID] 
   

Claire Dean WA11751932 21/01/2022 

   

Age Manager - Online Theory   

   

Mark Scarfone WA11703148 19/01/2022 

Raymond Bennett WA11701042 17/01/2022 

Carl Young WA11695975 13/01/2022 

Brad Smith WA11606379 21/11/2021 

Rosemary Hough WA11604644 21/11/2021 

Kristopher Macintosh WA11594021 14/11/2021 

Paul Murray WA11581554 6/11/2021 

Kim Anderson WA11579617 4/11/2021 

Joseph Wooden WA11511016 8/08/2021 

   

Bronze Medallion   

   

Tamara Smith WA11769924 19/03/2022 

Courtney Sutherland WA11769925 19/03/2022 

Aisling Matthews WA11717677 23/01/2022 

Aisling Tyndall WA11717680 23/01/2022 

Amelia Bradshaw-Pini WA11717667 23/01/2022 

Amrit Jessy WA11717675 23/01/2022 

Anthony Plange-Korndorfer WA11717678  23/01/2022 

Ava Forrest WA11717671 23/01/2022 

Barny Fraser WA11717672 23/01/2022 

Callum Cleave WA11717668 23/01/2022 

Elliot Kane WA11717676 23/01/2022 

Freya Walsh WA11717681 23/01/2022 

Gabrielle Gibbons WA11717674 23/01/2022 

Olivia Fuller WA11717673 23/01/2022 

Raymond Bennett WA11717666 23/01/2022 

Robyn Crighton WA11717669 23/01/2022 

Sophie Farrell WA11717670 23/01/2022 

Zoe Robinson WA11717679 23/01/2022 

Alexander Merry WA11700802 12/12/2021 

Ashleigh Farrell WA11700795 12/12/2021 

Byron Johnstone WA11700797 12/12/2021 

Cameron Ross WA11700803 12/12/2021 

Ella McNamara-Pitt WA11700801 12/12/2021 

Greg Dunn WA11700793 12/12/2021 

Hitesh Madan WA11700800 12/12/2021 

Jack Fairclough WA11700794 12/12/2021 

James Barton WA11700788 12/12/2021 

Jason Hirst WA11700796 12/12/2021 

Jo Anne Johnstone WA11700798 12/12/2021 

Jordan Krieser WA11700799 12/12/2021 

Kate Creasy WA11700790 12/12/2021 

Lachlan Sofield WA11700804 12/12/2021 

Marcus Dalley WA11700791 12/12/2021 

Nicholas Davidson WA11700792 12/12/2021 

Shane Braddock WA11700789 12/12/2021 

Claire Dean WA11589855 10/10/2021 

Eben Prinsloo WA11589862 10/10/2021 

Hudson Whiting WA11589869 10/10/2021 

Jake Gooding WA11589858 10/10/2021 

James Ravenscroft WA11589864 10/10/2021 

Jay Elliott-Tideman WA11589856 10/10/2021 

Jessica Stackhouse WA11589867 10/10/2021 

Jonah Whitby WA11589868 10/10/2021 

Katrina Measey WA11589860 10/10/2021 

Kinga Hague WA11589859 10/10/2021 

Leah Purcell WA11589863 10/10/2021 

Maia Ravenscroft WA11589865 10/10/2021 

Paul Measey WA11589861 10/10/2021 

Sienna Robinson WA11589866 10/10/2021 

Solomon Fegan WA11589857 10/10/2021 

   

Child Safe Awareness   

   

Chelsea Stockden WA11747962 9/03/2022 

Madison Hadley WA11746286 7/03/2022 

Carl Young WA11695957 13/01/2022 

Raymond Bennett WA11687394 9/01/2022 

Mark Scarfone WA11680096 5/01/2022 

Joseph Wooden WA11624964 2/12/2021 

Helen Airey WA11618379 28/11/2021 

David Moody WA11594811 15/11/2021 

Jessica Leng WA11594340 14/11/2021 

Kristopher Macintosh WA11593990 14/11/2021 

James Birkmanis WA11593404 13/11/2021 

Brad Smith WA11590348 11/11/2021 

Paul Murray WA11581552 6/11/2021 

Kim Anderson WA11579131 4/11/2021 

Rosemary Hough WA11578352 3/11/2021 

Cooper Whiting WA11572612 31/10/2021 

Natalie Cameron WA11571976 30/10/2021 

Elysia Shields WA11546732 12/10/2021 

Allison Caporn WA11539263 6/10/2021 

Felicity Hawkins WA11515110 22/08/2021 

James Currey WA11486886 28/04/2021 

   

First Aid   

   

Jack Hadley WA11748300 5/02/2022 

Madison Hadley WA11748304 5/02/2022 

Paul Grayson WA11748296 5/02/2022 

Pierce Gavin WA11748292 5/02/2022 

Claire Dean WA11742707 3/02/2022 

Colin Duffield WA11742715 3/02/2022 

Courtney Sutherland WA11742755 3/02/2022 

Hannah Lea WA11742731 3/02/2022 

Jay Elliott-Tideman WA11742719 3/02/2022 

Jessica Stackhouse WA11742751 3/02/2022 

Kate Burke WA11742703 3/02/2022 

Katherine Grayson WA11742723 3/02/2022 

Kristian Maliphant WA11742735 3/02/2022 

Larry Tilbury WA11742759 3/02/2022 

Leah Purcell WA11742739 3/02/2022 

Maia Ravenscroft WA11742743 3/02/2022 

Sienna Robinson WA11742747 3/02/2022 

Sophie Craddock WA11742763 3/02/2022 

Tanya Dean WA11742711 3/02/2022 

Zoe Jaques WA11742727 3/02/2022 

Kelly Aitken-Fox WA11755888 11/11/2021 

James Birkmanis WA11755892 11/11/2021 

Cameron Currey WA11755896 11/11/2021 

Michael Dean WA11755900 11/11/2021 

Matthew Housham WA11755904 11/11/2021 

Sascha Martin WA11755908 11/11/2021 

Tracey Shaw WA11755912 11/11/2021 

Madeleine Stockden WA11755916 11/11/2021 

Bianca Valencia WA11755920 11/11/2021 

Ray Webb WA11755924 11/11/2021 

David Moody WA11734089 21/01/2022 

Caroline Watson WA11734065 15/01/2022 

Timothy Gleeson WA11666228 11/12/2021 

John Price WA11642989 27/11/2021 

Mark Regel WA11642993 27/11/2021 

Nancy Kingston WA11610780 13/11/2021 

Joseph Wooden WA11680945 8/11/2021 

Sophie Adeline WA11642653 6/11/2021 

Dorian Moro WA11615513 30/10/2021 

Jake Silipo WA11686733 25/10/2021 

Matthew Housham WA11686731 25/10/2021 

Sarah Forsyth WA11734095 23/10/2021 

Rachelle Doyle WA11569751 16/10/2021 

Ethan Shaw WA11537625 21/09/2021 

Madelline Shaw WA11537767 6/09/2021 

Michael Shaw WA11514580 18/08/2021 

Peter Hastie WA11514573 18/08/2021 

Leanne Coverley-Brandis WA11691262 9/04/2021 

First Aid [AID]   

   

Timothy Gleeson WA11534416 8/09/2021 

   

Inclusive Beaches Online   

   

Chelsea Stockden WA11747282 8/03/2022 

Madison Hadley WA11746300 7/03/2022 

Jason Johansson Q11594229 14/11/2021 

Kristopher Macintosh WA11594006 14/11/2021 

Kim Anderson WA11579825 4/11/2021 

Deirdre Purcell WA11562203 23/10/2021 

   

IRB Crew Certificate   

   

Aimee Moody WA11752671 19/02/2022 

Amanda Kaczmarek WA11752669 19/02/2022 

Amrit Jessy WA11752666 19/02/2022 

Byron Johnstone WA11752667 19/02/2022 

Cameron Ross WA11752672 19/02/2022 

Hitesh Madan WA11752670 19/02/2022 

Hudson Whiting WA11752673 19/02/2022 

Jo Anne Johnstone WA11752668 19/02/2022 

Olivia Fuller WA11752665 19/02/2022 

Sally Clark WA11752664 19/02/2022 

Claire Dean WA11682676 4/12/2021 

Eben Prinsloo WA11682679 4/12/2021 

Jake Gooding WA11682678 4/12/2021 

James Ravenscroft WA11682680 4/12/2021 

Jay Elliott-Tideman WA11682677 4/12/2021 

Maia Ravenscroft WA11682681 4/12/2021 

Sienna Robinson WA11682682 4/12/2021 

Angus McLachlan WA11511206 22/05/2021 

April Lea WA11511205 22/05/2021 

Cameron Currey WA11511202 22/05/2021 

Liam Burke WA11511200 22/05/2021 

Meg de Laeter WA11511203 22/05/2021 

Milan Bazley WA11511198 22/05/2021 

Nicholas Wilson WA11511208 22/05/2021 

Olivia Power WA11511207 22/05/2021 

Paul Kohler WA11511204 22/05/2021 

Philip Chen WA11511201 22/05/2021 

   

MPIO - Member Protection Information Officer 
   

Jason Morgan WA11524436 11/09/2021 

   

Observers Award Online Theory   

   

Madison Hadley WA11747279 8/03/2022 

Chelsea Stockden WA11746658 7/03/2022 

Kim Anderson WA11584531 8/11/2021 

   

Pain Management Certificate    

   

Argyle Sivewright WA11761498 1/03/2022 

Bianca Valencia WA11761499 1/03/2022 

Clara Moody WA11761496 1/03/2022 

Cooper Whiting WA11761500 1/03/2022 

Jessica Leng WA11761495 1/03/2022 

Katherine Grayson WA11761493 1/03/2022 

Paul Grayson WA11761494 1/03/2022 

Sophie Craddock WA11761491 1/03/2022 

Tanya Dean WA11761492 1/03/2022 

Tracey Shaw WA11761497 1/03/2022 

Sophie Adeline WA11682802 8/11/2021 

Jake Silipo WA11717732 25/10/2021 

Ethan Shaw WA11539169 21/09/2021 

Timothy Gleeson WA11539166 21/09/2021 

   

Provide advanced resuscitation (HLTAID007) 
   

Claire Dean WA11751930 21/01/2022 

   

Provide advanced resuscitation and oxygen therapy 
(HLTAID015)   

   

Leanne Coverley-Brandis WA11712796 9/04/2021 

   

Provide first aid (HLTAID011)   

   

Jack Hadley WA11748299 5/02/2022 

Madison Hadley WA11748303 5/02/2022 

Paul Grayson WA11748295 5/02/2022 

Pierce Gavin WA11748291 5/02/2022 

Claire Dean WA11742706 3/02/2022 

Colin Duffield WA11742714 3/02/2022 
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Courtney Sutherland WA11742754 3/02/2022 

Hannah Lea WA11742730 3/02/2022 

Jay Elliott-Tideman WA11742718 3/02/2022 

Jessica Stackhouse WA11742750 3/02/2022 

Kate Burke WA11742702 3/02/2022 

Katherine Grayson WA11742722 3/02/2022 

Kristian Maliphant WA11742734 3/02/2022 

Larry Tilbury WA11742758 3/02/2022 

Leah Purcell WA11742738 3/02/2022 

Maia Ravenscroft WA11742742 3/02/2022 

Sienna Robinson WA11742746 3/02/2022 

Tanya Dean WA11742710 3/02/2022 

Zoe Jaques WA11742726 3/02/2022 

Kelly Aitken-Fox WA11755887 11/11/2021 

James Birkmanis WA11755891 11/11/2021 

Cameron Currey WA11755895 11/11/2021 

Michael Dean WA11755899 11/11/2021 

Matthew Housham WA11755903 11/11/2021 

Sascha Martin WA11755907 11/11/2021 

Tracey Shaw WA11755911 11/11/2021 

Madeleine Stockden WA11755915 11/11/2021 

Bianca Valencia WA11755919 11/11/2021 

Ray Webb WA11755923 11/11/2021 

David Moody WA11734088 21/01/2022 

Caroline Watson WA11734064 15/01/2022 

Timothy Gleeson WA11666227 11/12/2021 

John Price WA11642988 27/11/2021 

Mark Regel WA11642992 27/11/2021 

Nancy Kingston WA11610779 13/11/2021 

Sophie Adeline WA11642652 6/11/2021 

Dorian Moro WA11615512 30/10/2021 

Sarah Forsyth WA11734094 23/10/2021 

Rachelle Doyle WA11569750 16/10/2021 

Timothy Gleeson WA11534415 8/09/2021 

Leanne Coverley-Brandis WA11691261 9/04/2021 

   

Radio Operator Certificate   

   

Anthony Plange-Korndorfer WA11725513   5/01/2022 

Eva Longstaff WA11725497 5/01/2022 

Finnbar Williams WA11725528 5/01/2022 

Matilda Smith WA11725519 5/01/2022 

   

Rescue Water Craft Operator Certificate  

   

Ray Webb WA11515948 31/07/2021 

Elisabeth Pitts WA11511211 24/07/2021 

Ethan Shaw WA11511212 24/07/2021 

Lawson Mills WA11511210 24/07/2021 

Luke de Laeter WA11511209 24/07/2021 

   

Resuscitation   

   

Clara Moody WA11712812 30/10/2021 

   

Silver Medallion IRB Driver   

   

Jack Hadley WA11626733 6/11/2021 

Clara Moody WA11614166 23/10/2021 

Javier Mogollon WA11614170 23/10/2021 

Liam Burke WA11614168 23/10/2021 

Millie Sales WA11614172 23/10/2021 

Nicholas Poynton WA11614171 23/10/2021 

Nicholas Wilson WA11614173 23/10/2021 

Philip Chen WA11614169 23/10/2021 

   

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)  

   

Alex Eddison WA11663527 5/12/2021 

Alex Prior WA11663545 5/12/2021 

Ally Sherriff WA11663551 5/12/2021 

Alyssa Tyndall WA11663558 5/12/2021 

Amali Pettman WA11663544 5/12/2021 

Amelia Sucur WA11663554 5/12/2021 

Amelia Taranto WA11663556 5/12/2021 

Amy Doig WA11663526 5/12/2021 

Anthony Parissis WA11663541 5/12/2021 

Bridget Gavin WA11663530 5/12/2021 

Brodie Gooding WA11663531 5/12/2021 

Cassia Audeyev WA11663517 5/12/2021 

Chloe Gaspar WA11663528 5/12/2021 

Darcy Pavlovich WA11663542 5/12/2021 

Delilah Worrall WA11663560 5/12/2021 

Ella Gaspar WA11663529 5/12/2021 

Ellen O'Keeffe WA11663540 5/12/2021 

Emma Bakkers WA11663518 5/12/2021 

Eva Longstaff WA11663536 5/12/2021 

Finnbar Williams WA11663559 5/12/2021 

Genevieve McLachlan WA11663537 5/12/2021 

Ginger Archer WA11663515 5/12/2021 

Helen Smith WA11663552 5/12/2021 

Isaac Ashe WA11663516 5/12/2021 

Jack Groom WA11663532 5/12/2021 

Jason Curedale WA11663525 5/12/2021 

Jovana Tutulic WA11663557 5/12/2021 

Liam Purcell WA11663546 5/12/2021 

Lucia Bradshaw-Pini WA11663521 5/12/2021 

Lucy Chambers WA11663524 5/12/2021 

Madison Hadley WA11663533 5/12/2021 

Marcus Sucur WA11663555 5/12/2021 

Matilda Smith WA11663553 5/12/2021 

Maymuna Ballal WA11663519 5/12/2021 

Micah Renton WA11663548 5/12/2021 

Millie Mullins WA11663538 5/12/2021 

Murray Bolton WA11663520 5/12/2021 

Noah O'Hehir WA11663539 5/12/2021 

Poppy Rawlings WA11663547 5/12/2021 

Presley Peppin WA11663543 5/12/2021 

Rhys Cameron WA11663522 5/12/2021 

Riley Job WA11663534 5/12/2021 

Teagan Rooney WA11663550 5/12/2021 

Thomas Langdon WA11663535 5/12/2021 

William Renton WA11663549 5/12/2021 

Zahn Celedin WA11663523 5/12/2021 

Adie McGrath WA11742018 28/11/2021 

Alice Fowler WA11742013 28/11/2021 

Ally Uppill WA11742024 28/11/2021 

Annie Fulwood WA11742015 28/11/2021 

Ashlee Suckling WA11742023 28/11/2021 

Bella Connelly WA11742011 28/11/2021 

Bronagh Fowler WA11742014 28/11/2021 

Elizabeth Willcox WA11742027 28/11/2021 

Emma Levett WA11742016 28/11/2021 

Evie Wedge WA11742025 28/11/2021 

George McAuslane WA11742017 28/11/2021 

Gracie Yewers WA11742028 28/11/2021 

Jessica Rintoul WA11742022 28/11/2021 

Jorja Brown WA11742010 28/11/2021 

Lauren Paganoni WA11742021 28/11/2021 

Macie Brennan WA11742009 28/11/2021 

Madeleine Armstrong WA11742008 28/11/2021 

Maya Nicholls WA11742020 28/11/2021 

Reeve Misiuepa WA11742019 28/11/2021 

Stella Wessels WA11742026 28/11/2021 

Summer Coster WA11742012 28/11/2021 

Carl Dyde WA11744769 6/11/2021 

Clinton Haskew-Jones WA11744770 6/11/2021 

Deirdre Purcell WA11744773 6/11/2021 

Dione Stackhouse WA11744777 6/11/2021 

Jason Nuttman WA11744772 6/11/2021 

Jim Purcell WA11744774 6/11/2021 

Luchea Robinson WA11744776 6/11/2021 

Paul McKiernan WA11744771 6/11/2021 

Robyn Crighton WA11744768 6/11/2021 

Tarna Bulman WA11744767 6/11/2021 

Thomas Wayne WA11744778 6/11/2021 

Tristan Rees WA11744775 6/11/2021 

   

Surf Risk Rating (Online Modules)    

   

Dean Davidson WA11751816 15/03/2022 

Ashleigh Wooden WA11508846 28/07/2021 

   

WA Assessor   

   

Kate Burke WA11757688 23/03/2022 

Liam Burke WA11757689 23/03/2022 

Timothy Gleeson WA11511987 1/06/2021 

   

WA Facilitator ART   

   

John Price WA11514624 18/08/2021 

Mark Regel WA11514626 18/08/2021 

Michael Shaw WA11514628 18/08/2021 

Peter Hastie WA11514621 18/08/2021 

   

WA Training Officer (IRB)   

   

James Birkmanis WA11633245 5/12/2021 

Jake Silipo WA11588547 10/10/2021 

   

WA Training Officer Certificate   

   

David Moody WA11613695 17/11/2021 

James Birkmanis WA11613690 17/11/2021 

James Currey WA11613692 17/11/2021 

Jessica Leng WA11613694 17/11/2021 

Cooper Whiting WA11729758 4/11/2021 

Timothy Gleeson WA11511986 1/06/2021 

Jake Silipo   Anti-Doping Fundamentals Course  WA11749160 11/03/2022 

Marcin Gabriel   Anti-Doping Fundamentals Course  WA11492594 6/05/2021 

Joseph Wooden   Core Official (Online Theory Modules) WA11556015 19/10/2021 

Jake Silipo   Development Coach (Online Theory) WA11749162 11/03/2022 

Ashleigh Wooden Development Coach IRB   WA11503243 28/06/2021 

Joseph Wooden   Foundation Coach (Online Theory) WA11552544 17/10/2021 

Craig Harding   S2 Boat Sweep Accreditation  WA11748030 9/03/2022 

Michael Cook   Senior Official     WA10654939 20/12/2021 

Jake Silipo   Sport Australia Community Coaching WA11749806 11/03/2022 

Joseph Wooden   Sport Australia Community Officiating WA11564227 19/10/2021 

Gregory Whipp   Technical Official    WA11530652 23/09/2021 

Susan Coleman   Technical Official    WA11517648 30/08/2021 

Peter Wyburn   Technical Official    WA11514295 19/08/2021 

Melvin Nunes   Technical Official    WA11497483 19/05/2021 

Susan Coleman   Technical Official (Online Theory)  WA11517650 30/08/2021 

Peter Wyburn   Technical Official (Online Theory)  WA11514300 19/08/2021 

Melvin Nunes   Technical Official (Online Theory)  WA11497482 19/05/2021 

Surf Sports Coaching Awards 2021-2022 



DO YOU LIKE THE PICTURES IN THE ANNUAL REPORT ? 

If you like the photographs you see in the Annual Report, most of them come courtesy of our Club photographer, Tony Bowers. Tony does 
an outstanding job recording the life and times at Fremantle Surf Club. Tony's photos are available on his Smugmug site. The web address 
is http://freosurf.smugmug.com. The site is password-protected. The password can be obtained from Administration at the Club or ask 
any Board Director or Age Group Manager. 



 

Thanks to our major sponsors for 2021-22 ! 

The Nipper board group 


